
The District’s regular Board meeting is held on the first Thursday of every month. This notice and agenda is posted 
on the District’s web site (www.spmud.ca.gov) and posted in the District’s outdoor bulletin board at the SPMUD 
Headquarters at the above address. Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for other 
considerations should be made through the District Headquarters at (916)786-8555.   

AGENDA 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS

Director Gerald Mitchell,   Ward 1 
President William Dickinson, Ward 2 
Director John Murdock,   Ward 3 
Director Victor Markey,   Ward 4 
Director James Williams,   Ward 5 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. CONSENT ITEMS [pg 1 to 19] 

Consent items should be considered together as one motion. Any item(s) requested to be 
removed will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Items. 

ACTION: (Voice vote) 
Motion to approve the consent items for the October 6, 2016 meeting 

1. MINUTES from the September 1, 2016 Regular Board Meeting.
2. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE in the amount of $2,704,873.37 through September 29, 2016.
3. MONTHLY INVESTMENT REPORT in the total amount of $52,102,278.29 through

September 29, 2016. 
4. BILL OF SALE Acceptance of the Bill of Sale for sewer improvements associated with the

Croftwood 3A - Crowne Point Subdivision Phase 1 – 30 EDUs/$329,832.
5. BILL OF SALE Acceptance of the Bill of Sale for sewer improvements associated with

Garnet Creek Multi Family Development – 260.26 EDUs /$234,770.
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REGULAR MEETING: 4:30 PM  

October 6, 2016 
SPMUD Board Room 

5807 Springview Drive, Rocklin, CA 95677 
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V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Items not on the Agenda may be presented to the Board at this time; however, the Board 
can take no action. 

VI. BOARD BUSINESS

Board action may occur on any identified agenda item.  Any member of the public may 
directly address the Board on any identified agenda item of interest, either before or during 
the Board's consideration of that item.  

1. FISCAL YEAR 15/16 AUDIT REPORT [pg 20 to 66] 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors receive the Fiscal Year 15/16 Audit Report 
completed by the certified public accounting firm of Stroub, Thompson & Noble, for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2016. 

Action Requested: Voice vote 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 
1. Receive the Fiscal Year 15/16 Audit Report.

2. CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION #16-21 AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL
MANAGER TO SIGN & EXECUTE A PRELMINARY DESIGN AGREEMENT WITH WATERWORKS 
ENGINEERING FOR THE LOWER CLOVER VALLEY TRUNK PROJECT [pg 67 to 81] 
The Preliminary Design Engineering Agreement between the District and Waterworks 
Engineering for work related to the Lower Clover Valley Trunk project. 

Action Requested:  Roll call vote 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 
1. Adopt Resolution #16-21 authorizing the General Manager to sign & execute a
Preliminary Design Agreement with Waterworks Engineering for the Lower Clover Valley 
Trunk project. 

3. CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION #16-22 AMENDING POLICY 3160 –
UTILITY BILLING RECONCILIATION & PAYMENT POLICY & POLICY 3165 – DELINQUENT(PAST 
DUE) BILLS
 The District Policy and Ordinance Committee met in September to review proposed changes 
to Policy 3160 – Utility Billing Reconciliation & Payment Policy and Policy 3165 – Delinquent 
(Past Due) Bills.  Final versions of each policy are presented to the Board for their approval.        

Action Requested:  Roll call vote 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 
1. Approve Resolution #16-22 Amending Policy 3160 for Utility Billing Reconciliation &
Payments & Adopt Policy 3165 for Delinquent (Past Due) Bills. 
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VII. REPORTS [pg 88 to 94] 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information on projects, programs, staff actions 
and committee meetings that are of general interest to the Board and public. No decisions 
are to be made on these issues.  

1. Legal Counsel (A. Brown)
2. General Manager (H. Niederberger)

1) FSD, ASD & TSD Reports
2) Informational items

3. Director’s Comments:
Directors may make brief announcements or brief reports on their own activities.  They may 
ask questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have staff place a 
matter of business on a future agenda. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT
If there is no other Board business the President will adjourn the meeting to its next regular 
meeting on November 3, 2016 at 4:30 p.m.  
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 BOARD MINUTES 
SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Meeting Location Date Time 
Regular District Office September 1, 2016 4:30 p.m. 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER: The Regular Meeting of the South Placer Municipal Utility District Board of 
Directors was called to order with President Dickinson presiding at 4:30 p.m.    

II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS:
Present: Will Dickinson, Vic Markey, Jerry Mitchell, John Murdock, Jim Williams 

Absent:  None 
Vacant:  None 

Staff: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 
Sam Rose, Superintendent 
Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 

Others: Michael O’Hagan, Forsgren Associates Inc. 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  President Dickinson led the Pledge of Allegiance.

IV. CONSENT ITEMS:
1. Minutes from the August 4, 2016 Regular Board Meeting.
2. Accounts Payable in the amount of $222,994.56 through August 25, 2016.
3. Monthly Investment Report in the total amount of $53,156,519.58 through August 25, 2016.
4. Bills of Sale Acceptance of the Bill of Sale for sewer improvements associated with the

Whitney Ranch Parkway and extension of Painted Pony Lane.
5. Bill of Sale Acceptance of the Bill of Sale for sewer improvements associated within Stanford

Ranch, Parcel 61.

President Dickinson pulled item #1 from the consent items.  Director Williams made a motion to approve 
items 2 through 5 on the consent calendar, a second was made by Director Murdock; the motion carried 
5-0.  A discussion followed regarding corrections to the minutes from the August 4, 2016 meeting.  
Corrections were related to the HQ Reconstruction project contract approval and attendance at the 
meeting. Director Williams made a motion to approve the revised minutes, a second was made by 
Director Markey; the motion carried 5-0. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS:   
President Dickinson opened the Public comments. Hearing no comments, public comments were closed. 

VI. BOARD BUSINESS:

1. Consideration & Approval of Resolution #16-20, authorizing the General Manager to sign &
execute an Agreement with Caltrans for Advance Engineering Services – I80/SR65 Interchange 
Improvements project 
District Engineer Nielsen introduced a brief presentation regarding the Caltrans Advance Engineering 
services for relocating the 42 inch sewer line in conjunction with the I80/SR65 Interchange 
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Improvements project. This phase of construction is set to start in the fall of 2017. Director Mitchell 
asked if this project had anything to do with the half cent sales tax initiative being proposed by Placer 
County Transportation Planning Agency.  District Engineer Nielsen responded that from what he 
understands this phase has already been accounted for in Caltrans budget regardless of the outcome 
of the initiative.   

Director Mitchell made a motion to approve Resolution #16-20 authorizing the General Manager to 
sign & execute an Agreement with Caltrans for Advance Engineering Services for the I80/SR65 
Interchange project, a second was made by Director Williams; the motion carried 5-0. 

2. Consideration to hear a report of District Security Measures
General Manager Niederberger reported that there had been another intrusion on property last month, 
with no damage or stolen property.  He indicated that Superintendent Rose would provide a 
demonstration of the security system technology and explain how staff is working with local police 
enforcement to ensure the property is adequately protected.  A brief presentation was made to the Board 
and Superintendent Rose responded to questions from Board members regarding the security system and 
the perimeter walls and fencing.   

This item was informational and no action was taken. 

3. 2013-17 Strategic Plan, Semi-Annual Report – Ending 4th Quarter FY 15+16
General Manager Niederberger reported that the Strategic Plan extends through the end of the current 
fiscal year.  He stated that over the next six months he will complete outreach and conduct workshops 
with the board to determine goals and objectives for the next strategic plan. He stated that for instance 
the board may want to consider future items for the next plan that could include additional FOG outreach 
and Sustainability policies. Staff provided a report and status update of items contained within the plan.   

The report was accepted by the Board. 

VII. REPORTS:
1. District General Counsel (A. Brown): General Counsel Brown provided a short legislative update

that included an update for SB1298; he indicated that it appeared to be tabled at this time.  He
stated that he would provide further information to the board during the closed session.

2. General Manager (H. Niederberger): GM Niederberger reported that he would be attending the
CSDA Annual conference in San Diego in October and asked if any board members wished to
attend. There was some discussion to the benefits of attending these conferences. No board
members elected to attend.

A. ASD, FSD & TSD Reports:   Director Murdock asked about the landscape agreement costs related
to the Public Works contracting requirements.  Superintendent Rose explained the requirements for 
Public Works contracts that the District must follow, that these contracts can only be issued to licensed 
businesses registered with the state, and that the contractors comply with prevailing wage laws. 
Superintendent Rose responded to an inquiry from President Dickinson regarding the costs of necessary 
repairs to the transmission on the Hydro-Vac vehicle. 
B. Information Items: No additional items were reported.  
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3. Directors Comments: Director Mitchell indicated that the Policy & Ordinance Committee would
be meeting on 09/7/16 to discuss a number of proposed policies and policy changes. 

VIII. CLOSED SESSION
The meeting adjourned into closed session at 5:25 p.m. 

VIIII. ADJOURNMENT
The Board reconvened into open session.  Legal Counsel Brown indicated that no action had been taken 
during the closed session.  The meeting was adjourned at 5:45 p.m. to the next Regular Meeting to be 
held on Thursday, October 6, 2016 at 4:30 p.m. 

Joanna Belanger, Board Secretary 
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Check Report
South Placer Municipal Utility District, CA By Check Number

Date Range: 08/25/2016 - 09/29/2016

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

1021 ARC 08/25/2016 763511.35Regular 0.00

1521 Aries Industries, Inc. 08/25/2016 76361,678.43Regular 0.00

1560 Richard Gonzales 08/25/2016 7637240.85Regular 0.00

1499 TechRoe.com LLC 08/25/2016 7638900.00Regular 0.00

1240 Placer County Personnel 08/26/2016 76392,526.96Regular 0.00

1505 California Surveying & Drafting Supply 08/30/2016 7640292.88Regular 0.00

1174 KBA Docusys, Inc. 08/30/2016 7641442.09Regular 0.00

1558 Lynn Montes 08/30/2016 764231.72Regular 0.00

1221 PG&E 08/30/2016 7643184.86Regular 0.00

1292 SPMUD Petty Cash 08/30/2016 764465.03Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76450.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76460.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76470.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76480.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76490.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76500.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76510.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76520.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76530.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76540.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76550.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76560.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76570.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76580.00Regular 0.00

**Void** 09/08/2016 76590.00Regular 0.00

1020 Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc. 09/08/2016 7660404.00Regular 0.00

1004 AT&T 09/08/2016 7661119.38Regular 0.00

1026 AUS West Lockbox 09/08/2016 7662913.96Regular 0.00

1484 Axa Equitable 09/08/2016 76631,110.00Regular 0.00

1068 City of Roseville 09/08/2016 7664684,723.94Regular 0.00

1086 Dataprose 09/08/2016 76656,961.57Regular 0.00

1087 Dawson Oil Co. 09/08/2016 76661,923.90Regular 0.00

1090 Department of Justice 09/08/2016 766732.00Regular 0.00

1113 Ferguson Enterprises, Inc. 1423 09/08/2016 7668423.55Regular 0.00

1473 Pitney Bowes Purchase Power 09/08/2016 7669311.22Regular 0.00

1554 Service Master 09/08/2016 7670884.51Regular 0.00

1333 SPOK, Inc. 09/08/2016 767126.25Regular 0.00

1499 TechRoe.com LLC 09/08/2016 7672900.00Regular 0.00

1492 Wave Broadband - Rocklin 09/08/2016 7673209.85Regular 0.00

1346 WEF Membership 09/08/2016 7674235.00Regular 0.00

1004 AT&T 09/12/2016 76759.40Regular 0.00

1068 City of Roseville 09/12/2016 76761,539,312.00Regular 0.00

1555 Jon K Takada Const- DBA Restoration Management Company09/12/2016 767760,000.00Regular 0.00

1218 PCWA 09/12/2016 7678715.27Regular 0.00

1234 Placer County APCD 09/12/2016 76791,110.59Regular 0.00

1244 Preferred Alliance 09/12/2016 7680142.56Regular 0.00

1475 Van Erp, Petersen & Babcock, LLP 09/12/2016 7681750.00Regular 0.00

1338 Verizon Wireless 09/12/2016 7682564.73Regular 0.00

1562 Executive Desk Company 09/13/2016 76839,206.00Regular 0.00

1048 California Dept. of Fish & Wildlife 09/15/2016 7704184.00Regular 0.00

1073 Consolidated Communications 09/15/2016 77051,018.03Regular 0.00

1077 County of Placer 09/15/2016 770659,708.61Regular 0.00

1480 Herb Niederberger 09/15/2016 7707293.96Regular 0.00

1161 Joanna Belanger 09/15/2016 770884.40Regular 0.00
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Check Report Date Range: 08/25/2016 - 09/29/2016

9/29/2016 3:10:21 PM Page 2 of 4

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

1173 KBA Docusys 09/15/2016 7709221.47Regular 0.00

1188 Lucity, Inc. 09/15/2016 7710150.00Regular 0.00

1563 National Business Furniture, LLC 09/15/2016 77114,459.15Regular 0.00

1211 Noble Image, Inc. 09/15/2016 771266.00Regular 0.00

1292 SPMUD Petty Cash 09/15/2016 7713160.00Regular 0.00

1306 Superior Equipment Repair 09/15/2016 771412,608.76Regular 0.00

1521 Aries Industries, Inc. 09/22/2016 77151,169.38Regular 0.00

1552 Bennett Engineering Services 09/22/2016 77163,453.61Regular 0.00

1080 CWEA 09/22/2016 7717860.00Regular 0.00

1480 Herb Niederberger 09/22/2016 771821.00Regular 0.00

1139 Hill Rivkins Brown & Associates 09/22/2016 77197,654.40Regular 0.00

1564 Jensen Landscape Services, LLC 09/22/2016 7720688.80Regular 0.00

1238 Placer County Department of Public Works 09/22/2016 772155.00Regular 0.00

1253 Recology Auburn Placer 09/22/2016 7722296.13Regular 0.00

1487 RJA Heating & Air, Inc. 09/22/2016 7723403.25Regular 0.00

1508 Sacramento Rendering Co. 09/22/2016 772425.00Regular 0.00

1518 Sonitrol of Sacramento 09/22/2016 7725631.99Regular 0.00

1307 Sutter Medical Foundation-Corporate 09/22/2016 7726168.00Regular 0.00

1343 Water Works Engineers, LLC 09/22/2016 772737,728.43Regular 0.00

1345 WECO 09/22/2016 772885.51Regular 0.00

1016 American General Life Insurance 09/27/2016 775612,292.00Regular 0.00

1240 Placer County Personnel 09/27/2016 77572,583.96Regular 0.00

1567 American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) 09/29/2016 7758270.00Regular 0.00

1020 Aqua Sierra Controls, Inc. 09/29/2016 77591,557.13Regular 0.00

1051 California Service Tool, Inc. 09/29/2016 77606,424.50Regular 0.00

1123 Gladding McBean 09/29/2016 7761398.48Regular 0.00

1173 KBA Docusys 09/29/2016 77625.83Regular 0.00

1218 PCWA 09/29/2016 7763632.31Regular 0.00

1221 PG&E 09/29/2016 77644,669.34Regular 0.00

1270 Rootx 09/29/2016 7765277.00Regular 0.00

1548 Williams Scotsman 09/29/2016 77663,919.04Regular 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021431.50Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021442.18Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT000214518.70Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT000214627.16Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 08/26/2016 DFT000214728.96Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT000214810.28Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021492.10Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 08/26/2016 DFT00021506.76Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 08/26/2016 DFT000215135.04Bank Draft 0.00

1045 Cal Pers 457 Plan (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT0002153300.00Bank Draft 0.00

1135 Mass Mutual (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021544,209.80Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT0002155147.25Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT0002156228.97Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT0002157332.97Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021582,862.13Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021594,162.26Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT000216074.67Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT000216189.37Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021621,066.74Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021631,276.59Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021641,070.50Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021651,122.76Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 08/26/2016 DFT00021668,643.00Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021672,763.55Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT0002168613.09Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 08/26/2016 DFT00021692,021.34Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 08/26/2016 DFT00021707,682.16Bank Draft 0.00

1015 American Fidelity Assurance 08/26/2016 DFT00021711,021.72Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021723.27Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT000217314,841.84Bank Draft 0.00
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Check Report Date Range: 08/25/2016 - 09/29/2016

9/29/2016 3:10:21 PM Page 3 of 4

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

1230 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT000217432,908.89Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 08/26/2016 DFT00021751,950.00Bank Draft 0.00

1045 Cal Pers 457 Plan (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT0002177300.00Bank Draft 0.00

1135 Mass Mutual (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT00021784,659.80Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT0002179147.25Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT0002180228.97Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT0002181332.97Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT00021822,862.13Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT00021834,162.24Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT000218481.15Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT000218597.12Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT00021861,159.26Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT00021871,387.31Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT00021881,070.50Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT00021891,122.76Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 09/09/2016 DFT00021909,365.18Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT00021912,871.10Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 09/09/2016 DFT0002192602.52Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 09/09/2016 DFT00021932,190.24Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 09/09/2016 DFT00021948,037.14Bank Draft 0.00

1246 Prudential Municipal Pool 09/09/2016 DFT0002195147.70Bank Draft 0.00

1045 Cal Pers 457 Plan (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT0002197300.00Bank Draft 0.00

1135 Mass Mutual (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT00021984,309.80Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT0002199147.25Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT0002200228.97Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT0002201332.97Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT00022022,862.13Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT00022034,162.26Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT000220482.89Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT000220599.21Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT00022061,184.23Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT00022071,417.19Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT00022081,070.50Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT00022091,122.76Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 09/23/2016 DFT00022108,666.26Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT00022112,829.93Bank Draft 0.00

1098 EDD  (EFT) 09/23/2016 DFT0002212592.03Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 09/23/2016 DFT00022132,083.96Bank Draft 0.00

1149 Internal Revenue Service 09/23/2016 DFT00022147,894.31Bank Draft 0.00

1015 American Fidelity Assurance 09/27/2016 DFT00022151,021.72Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/27/2016 DFT00022163.27Bank Draft 0.00

1229 Pers (EFT) 09/27/2016 DFT000221714,841.84Bank Draft 0.00

1230 Pers (EFT) 09/27/2016 DFT000221832,908.89Bank Draft 0.00

1246 Prudential Municipal Pool 09/27/2016 DFT0002219158.26Bank Draft 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

70

0

15

74

0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

159 0.00

Payment

2,482,588.32

0.00

0.00

218,671.52

0.00

2,701,259.84

Payable
Count

102

0

0

74

0

176
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Check Report Date Range: 08/25/2016 - 09/29/2016

Page 4 of 49/29/2016 3:10:21 PM

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

100 GENERAL FUND 95,899.728/2016

100 GENERAL FUND 2,605,360.129/2016

2,701,259.84
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Account Number Name Date Type  Amount Reference

102-0000982-01 Peterson, Dale E 9/14/2016 Refund 85.09$  Check #: 7684
102-0001475-01 Wise, Judith 9/14/2016 Refund 134.97$                 Check #: 7685
102-0003146-03 Acacia Street Homes, LLC 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7686
102-0003250-01 Messina, Daniel T 9/14/2016 Refund 85.16$  Check #: 7687
102-0007066-01 Cotter, Mark J 9/14/2016 Refund 84.02$  Check #: 7688
102-0007846-02 Morgan, Greg and Kendyl 9/14/2016 Refund 5.15$  Check #: 7689
102-0008849-02 Golden 1 Credit Union 9/14/2016 Refund 10.77$  Check #: 7690
102-0009038-01 Ballard, Kevin 9/14/2016 Refund 84.47$  Check #: 7691
102-0009845-01 Henley, Theodore and Patti 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7692
102-0010114-01 Harjer, Steve 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7693
102-0011455-01 MICAHEL LAIDLAW 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7694
106-0014275-01 CHUCK WHITECOTTON 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7695
106-0016138-01 Yallech, Linda 9/14/2016 Refund 84.43$  Check #: 7696
106-0017576-02 Kageta, Grant and Maria 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7697
112-1021965-02 DWAYNE E MCCARTY 9/14/2016 Refund 85.17$  Check #: 7698
112-1026655-00 Inc, Taylor Morrison Services 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7699
112-1026830-00 CalAtlantic Group, Inc. 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7700
112-1027061-00 Richmond America Homes 9/14/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7701
112-1027065-00 D R Horton 9/14/2016 Refund 84.59$  Check #: 7702
115-1025468-01 Ttee, Clyde Eldon Rose 9/14/2016 Refund 18.83$  Check #: 7703
102-0005459-01 Ravo, Kevin L 9/23/2016 Refund 12.69$  Check #: 7729
102-0006959-02 Thompson, Ward 9/23/2016 Refund 8.40$  Check #: 7730
102-0007187-01 Larson, Walter and Carolyn 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7731
102-0009151-01 Farley, Jeffrey 9/23/2016 Refund 100.00$                 Check #: 7732
102-0011151-01 Cumbra, Brian 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7733
106-0015332-02 IH2 Property West LP 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7734
106-0016452-01 STEPHEN A HAYDU 9/23/2016 Refund 81.20$  Check #: 7735
112-1019670-01 Sullivan, Sean 9/23/2016 Refund 6.46$  Check #: 7736
112-1021515-01 Stout, Christopher 9/23/2016 Refund 252.77$                 Check #: 7737
112-1021758-01 Al, Josh McCann Et 9/23/2016 Refund 84.90$  Check #: 7738
112-1023859-01 Simonick, Troy R 9/23/2016 Refund 47.48$  Check #: 7739
112-1025094-01 Wahl, Matthew 9/23/2016 Refund 168.90$                 Check #: 7740
112-1026911-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.50$  Check #: 7741
112-1027025-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 78.22$  Check #: 7742
112-1027031-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7743
112-1027041-00 CalAtlantic Group, Inc. 9/23/2016 Refund 45.78$  Check #: 7744
112-1027062-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7745
112-1027063-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7746
112-1027064-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.61$  Check #: 7747
112-1027067-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.63$  Check #: 7748
112-1027068-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7749
112-1027069-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7750
112-1027070-00 D R Horton 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7751
113-1022270-02 Randel and Judy Kendall 9/23/2016 Refund 84.00$  Check #: 7752
102-0010412-01 Baddawi, Saleh K 9/26/2016 Refund 55.97$  Check #: 7753
112-1023096-01 Card, Ronald 9/26/2016 Refund 47.60$  Check #: 7754
102-0008849-02 Golden 1 Credit Union 9/26/2016 Refund 10.77$  Check #: 7755

TOTAL REFUNDS 3,613.53$             
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Fund 100 Fund 300 Fund 400 

% 
Change General CIP & Expansion 

Capital Replacement 
& Rehabilitation 

Allocation to Fund Type 22.10% 39.34% 38.56%

CalTRUST  

Balance  $                 19,113,094.36  $            4,224,998.55  $       7,544,488.87  $           7,343,606.94 
Income 0.1%  $ 15,360.00  $ 3,395.20  $               6,042.29  $ 5,922.51 

Unrealized Gain/Loss -0.2%  $ (29,844.02)  $ (6,596.77)  $           (11,739.99)  $               (11,507.26)
Realized Gain/Loss 0.0%  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   

TOTAL  $                 19,098,610.34  $            4,221,796.98  $       7,538,791.17  $           7,338,022.19 
Wells Fargo - Fixed Income Securities

Balance  $                 18,145,952.08  $            4,032,261.47  $       7,057,414.38  $           7,056,276.23 
Income 0.1%  $ 15,377.38  $ 3,399.04  $               6,049.13  $ 5,929.21 

Unrealized Gain/Loss -0.2%  $ (42,244.38)  $ (9,337.76)  $           (16,618.02)  $               (16,288.60)
Realized Gain/Loss 0.0%  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   

Transfer In  $ 4,000,000.00  $                884,166.10  $       1,573,513.23  $           1,542,320.67 
TOTAL  $                 22,119,085.08  $            4,910,488.85  $       8,620,358.71  $           8,588,237.52 

LAIF (Local Agency Investment Fund)

Balance  $ 5,004,901.50  $            1,106,291.06  $       1,968,819.68  $           1,929,790.76 
 Interest  $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -   

TOTAL  $ 5,004,901.50  $            1,106,291.06  $       1,968,819.68  $           1,929,790.76 
Placer County Treasury

Balance  $ 5,031,546.66  $            1,112,180.75  $       1,979,301.31  $           1,940,064.61 
Interest 1.34%  $ 5,244.04  $ 1,159.15  $               2,062.89  $ 2,022.00 

TOTAL  $ 5,036,790.70  $            1,113,339.90  $       1,981,364.20  $           1,942,086.61 
SUB-TOTAL  $                 51,259,387.62  $          11,351,916.78  $    20,109,333.76  $         19,798,137.08 

Checking Account Balance  $ 842,890.67  $                186,313.84  $          331,574.90  $              325,001.93 

GRAND TOTAL  $                 52,102,278.29  $          11,538,230.62  $    20,440,908.66  $         20,123,139.01 

SPMUD BOARD INVESTMENT REPORT
MEETING DATE: 10/06/16

INVESTMENT TOTAL FUNDS 

Investments are in compliance with  Policy# 3120 - Investment Policy, and have the ability to meet the next six months of cash flow 
requirements.

*Please note information presented is current at print time, and may be delayed by approximately 30 days.
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From:  Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 

Cc:  Carie Huff, Associate Engineer 

Subject: Acceptance of the Bill of Sale for Sewer Improvements within the Crowne 
Point Phase 1 Unit 3A Subdivision 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2016 

Overview 
Crowne Point Phase 1 Unit 3A Subdivision is located in Rocklin to the east of Lakepointe Drive. 
Crowne Point Phase 1 Unit 3A consists of 30 single-family residential homes for a total of 30 
EDU’s.  Crowne Point Phase 1 Unit 3A improvements include the following infrastructure: 

 Installation of two thousand nine hundred and eighteen (2,918) linear feet of sanitary sewer
pipe; 

 Installation of ten (10) manholes.

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors accept the attached Bill of Sale for the Crowne Point 
Phase 1 Unit 3A Subdivision. 

Strategic Plan Goal 
This action is consistent with SPMUD Strategic Plan Goals: 

Goal 1.1: Engage Customers to determine expectations. 
Goal 1.2: Establish and meet Service Level(s) by Department. 
Goal 3.1: Plan all projects to ensure adherence to District standards and ordinances. 

Fiscal Impact 
The estimated value of the contributed capital is $329,832.  

Attachments: 
1. Bill of Sale
2. Map – Crowne Point Phase 1 Unit 3A
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From:  Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 

Cc:  Carie Huff, Associate Engineer 

Subject: Acceptance of the Bill of Sale for Sewer Improvements within the Garnet 
Creek Multi Family Development 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2016 

Overview 
The Garnet Creek Multi Family Development is located in Rocklin on the west side of Granite 
Drive across from Rocklin Commons.  The Garnet Creek Multi Family Development consists of 
a 260-units for a total of 260.26 EDU’s.  The Garnet Creek Multi Family Development 
improvements include the following infrastructure: 

 Installation of one thousand and fifty nine (1,059) linear feet of sanitary sewer pipe;
 Installation of twelve (12) manholes.

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors accept the attached Bill of Sale for the Garnet Creek 
Multi Family Development. 

Strategic Plan Goal 
This action is consistent with SPMUD Strategic Plan Goals: 

Goal 1.1: Engage Customers to determine expectations. 
Goal 1.2: Establish and meet Service Level(s) by Department. 
Goal 3.1: Plan all projects to ensure adherence to District standards and ordinances. 

Fiscal Impact 
The estimated value of the contributed capital is $234,770.  

Attachments: 
1. Bill of Sale
2. Map – Garnet Creek Multi Family Development
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Herb Niederberger, General Manager  

Cc: Joanna Belanger, Administrative Services Manager 

Subject: Fiscal Year 2015/16 Audit Report 

Meeting Date:  October 6, 2016 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Board receive the Fiscal Year 2015/16 Audit report. 

Discussion & Information 
The independent audit of the Districts Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2016 was completed by the certified public accounting firm of Stroub, 
Thompson & Noble.  The Districts financial statements provide information about the finances of the 
District.  The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an executive summary to 
the statements and is located at the beginning of the financial section of the report.  

As a part of the annual audit, the auditors are required to provide reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements of the District for fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 are free from material 
misstatement. The report concludes that upon audit, there is a reasonable basis for an unqualified 
opinion (unqualified opinion is defined as appropriately presented financial records) and that the 
District’s financial statements are fairly presented in conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP). The Auditors report regarding internal controls and compliance with 
other matters based on the audit of financial statements determines that there are no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.   

The Auditor did note that there is a lack of segregation of duties in the Administrative Services 
Department.  Management recognizes that in a small office there are occasions where certain 
processes are completed by one person from beginning to end.  To address these situations, the 
District utilizes the services of a Certified Public Accountant to assist with bank reconciliation and 
monthly general ledger review. 

Fiscal Impact  
The Audit report concludes that District funds are being spent appropriately and as intended by the 
Board. 

Strategic Plan Goals 
This action is consistent with SPMUD Strategic Plan Goals: 

Goal 1.3: Build Business efficiencies 
Goal 2.2: Maintain compliance with pertinent regulations 
Goal 2.4: Maintain transparency with all District activities 
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 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

(Audited) 
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Page 20 of 94



 

  

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT  

June 30, 2016 

(Audited) 

  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

 

    Page 

 

DISTRICT INTRODUCTION PROFILE 

Introduction Letter            1 

Organization Chart            2 

Service Area             3 

Board of Directors            4 

 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT            5 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS         7 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

Statement of Net Position           15 

 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position       16 

 

Statement of Cash Flows           17 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements          19 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

Schedule of Operating Expenses           39 

 

Schedule of Operations -Budget and Actual          40 

 

 Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability       41 

 

 Notes to the Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability      43 

 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING                    44 

 

 
Page 21 of 94



 

 

October  6, 2016 

Members of the Board of Directors 

South Placer Municipal Utility District 

 

Directors: 

The South Placer Municipal Utility District is required by State statute to publish each fiscal year a 

complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting 

principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of 

licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we are pleased to present the 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the South Placer Municipal Utility District 

(District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The information presented in this CAFR is intended to 

provide financial information with all the disclosures necessary to enable the District’s customers, 

investment community and general public to assess the District’s financial condition. This report contains 

management’s representations concerning the finances of the District. Management is responsible for the 

completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable 

basis for making these representations, management of the District has established a comprehensive 

internal control framework that is designed to both protect the District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse 

and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the District’s financial statements in 

conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the 

District’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather 

than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As 

management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and 

reliable in all material respects.  

The District’s financial statements have been audited by Stroub Thompson Noble, CPAs, a firm of 

licensed certified public accountants with which the District contracts for these services. The goal of the 

independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the 

fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, are free from material misstatement. The independent audit involved 

examining, on a test basis, evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating 

the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded based upon the audit, that 

there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the District’s financial statements 

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent 

auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. GAAP require 

that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 

financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  

This transmittal letter is designed to complement the MD&A and is intended to be read in conjunction 

with it. 

 

Herb Niederberger 

General Manager 
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      1555 River Park Drive Suite 201  Sacramento, CA 95815 
 

   916.822.5128   Fax 916.218.6282  Email inquiry@stncpas.com 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 

To the Board of Directors of 

South Placer Municipal Utility District 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of South Placer Municipal Utility District for the 

fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as 

listed in the table of contents, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 

the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 

internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinions. 
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South Placer Municipal Utility District           Page 2 of 2 

(continued) 

 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 

discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 

the South Placer Municipal Utility District. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 

discussion and analysis on pages 7 to 13 and budgetary comparison information on page 40 be presented 

to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 

essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 

operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 

and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 

financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 

do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 6, 

2016, on our consideration of the South Placer Municipal Utility District's internal control over financial 

reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 

grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 

internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 

an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 

an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering South Placer 

Municipal Utility District. 

 

 
 

Stroub Thompson Noble  

Certified Public Accountants 

 

October 6, 2016 
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South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 (FY 2015/16) 

 

 

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

The purpose of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MDA) is to provide a fact-based summary 

of the financial status of the South Placer Municipal Utility District (District) from a management’s 

perspective. This report provides an indication of the District’s financial performance for fiscal year 

beginning on July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016 (FY2015/16) and should be reviewed in conjunction 

with the audited financial statements, which follow this MDA. 

 

DISTRICT OVERVIEW 

 

The District provides sewer collection services in southwestern Placer County, CA and serves an 

estimated population of 75,000 residing in the City of Rocklin and Town of Loomis, and in the 

unincorporated communities of Penryn, Newcastle and the Rodgersdale area of Granite Bay. Sewage is 

collected by the District and conveyed to regional wastewater treatment plants (WWTP) operated by the 

City of Roseville. Ninety-one percent of the District’s customers are residential, 5% commercial and 4% 

educational. 

 

A significant change in the District financial programs from previous year’s audits was the 

implementation of the Tyler Financial Management Software consisting of a financial/utility billing 

database program that began in FY2013/14 and continued into FY2014/15. During FY2015/16 the 

monthly service charge remained the same, but on October 1, 2015, the Local Participation Fee was 

increased to $3000 per equivalent dwelling unit (EDU). 

 

Table 1 below compares major District statistics for the last two fiscal years. 

 

TABLE 1: DISTRICT STATISTICS 

 

 
 

The District experienced a modest 1.4% increase in Customer Service Charge revenue that corresponds to 

the increase in EDUs placed into billing. The District continues to meet its growth expectations by adding 

approximately 500 new accounts each year. This modest growth is also reflected by the increase in assets, 

miles of pipe and manholes, added to the system with Developer contributions.  

 

Item Unit 

Fiscal Yr    

2014/15

Fiscal Year 

2015/16

%  Change 

over Previous

Service Charges Dollars 10,758,026$            10,911,091$            1.4%

Customer Accounts Each 21,108                     21,658                     2.6%

Equal Dwelling Units EDU 31,241                     31,676                     1.4%

Service Fee per EDU Monthly $28.00 $28.00 0.0%

Annual Flow to WWTP Million Gallons 1,500                       1,411                       -6.0%

Sewer Mains Miles 257.3                       266.9                       3.7%

Lower Service Laterals Miles 139                          123                          -11.2%

Manhole/Flushing Branch Each 6,050                       6,083                       0.5%

Lift Stations Each 13                            13                            0.0%

Force Mains Miles 6.8                           6.8                           0.0%
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South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 (FY 2015/16) 

 

The District continues to reflect the impact of the drought and the corresponding conservation efforts by 

customers; the annual flow sent to the wastewater treatment facilities operated by the South Placer 

Wastewater Authority dropped by 6% over the previous year.  

 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 

 

Revenues and Expenses for the past two fiscal years are summarized in Table 2 and Table 3, respectively.   

 

Per the Districts previously adopted five-year financing plan, the monthly service charge for FY 2013/14 

was scheduled to increase by $2.00 ($28.00 to $30.00) per EDU in 2014; however, the District chose to 

defer this increase; not only for 2014 but also 2015 and 2016. The District’s Sewer Participation Fee was 

also reduced in 2014 from $2,500 to $2100 per EDU. During FY2015/16 the monthly service charge 

remained the same, but on October 1, 2015, the Local Participation Fee was increased to $3000 per EDU.  

 

TABLE 2- REVENUE 

 
 

 

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YR                          

2014/15         

FISCAL YR                          

2015/16       

%  Change 

over Previous

SEWER SERVICE CHARGES REVENUES 10,758,026$           10,911,091$      1.4%

PERMITS, PLAN CHECK FEES & INSPECTIONS 274,971$                443,885$           61.4%

PROPERTY TAXES 686,237$                790,587$           15.2%

INTEREST 62,489$                  61,938$             -0.9%

GAIN ON SALE FIXED ASSET DISPOSAL 1,570$                    -$                      -100.0%

OTHER REVENUES -$                           -$                      0.0%

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 11,783,293$        12,207,501$   

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FUND

SEWER PARTICIPATION FEES  888,198$                1,443,773$        62.6%

INTEREST  451,475$                523,523$           16.0%

LOAN REPAYMENT NSD - PRSC 65,706$                  73,973$             12.6%

DEPRECIATION TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 1,163,361$             1,381,819$        18.8%

INTEREST FROM LOAN REPAYMENT NSD - PRSC (129,039)$              (122,564)$         -5.0%

TOTAL CIP FUND 1,276,340$          1,918,705$     

CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FUND 

INTEREST  -$                           47,023$             100.0%

TOTAL CAPITAL REPLACEMENT FUND -$                           47,023$           

TOTAL SPMUD REVENUE 13,059,633$        14,173,229$   
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South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 (FY 2015/16) 

 

As stated previously, General Fund Revenues derived from customer service charges were up only 

slightly over last year. General fund revenue derived from permits, plan check fees and inspections 

increased over 61.4% due to the increased development activity over the previous year. Local home 

resales drove an increase in revenue from the Districts’ portion of the local property taxes by 15%. 

Revenue derived from interest income on General Fund investments was higher due keeping a lower local 

check fund balance and transfers to investment funds. Total General Fund Revenue used to fund ongoing 

operations, maintenance and administrative functions of the District were increased over $424,000 from 

the previous year 

 

Revenue received from Sewer Participation charges increased approximately $555,000 over previous due 

to increased development fee and developer activity within the District boundaries. On February 4, 2016, 

the District adopted a strategy for the investment of District funds that resulted in a significant increase in 

the rate of return (reported as interest in Table 2) on District funds. While revenue derived from interest 

income on General Fund 100 investments was slightly lower due to keeping a lower local checking 

account fund balance and transfers to investment funds, total revenue on investments increased $118,000 

for FY 2015/16. 

 

It should be noted that previous financial statements inadvertently included depreciation transfers in the 

revenue analysis. This has been corrected and stricken out in Table 2 for emphasis. It will be excluded in 

future financial statements. Depreciation will be included as an annual operating expense.  

 

Total SPMUD revenue reported for FY 2015/16 showed an increase of $1.11M (8.5%) over the previous 

year. 

 

TABLE 3 – EXPENSES 

 
 

General Fund Expenses increased from FY 2014/15 to FY 2015/16 by $1.07M (10%) from $10.71M to 

$11.78M. This increase resulted primarily due to increased charges from the South Placer Wastewater 

Authority (SPWA) to fund the Regional Waste Water Treatment Plant (RWWTP) Operations and 

Maintenance (O&M) and Rehabilitation and Replacement (R&R) Programs. These two SPWA charges 

increased approximately $1.24M over the previous year. To offset these increased expenses, District staff 

reduced locally controlled expenses by over 30%.   

 

General Fund Revenues of $12.20M exceeded General Fund Expenses (not including Capital Outlays; of 

$11.78M).  

 

 

 

 

 

FISCAL YR                          

2014/15         

FISCAL YR                          

2015/16       

%  Change 

over Previous

Sub Total Salaries & Benefits 3,133,253$      3,305,066$      

Sub Total Local SPMUD General Fund Expenses 1,828,855$      1,271,136$      -30.5%

Sub Total SPWA O&M + R&R Expenses 4,591,517$      5,826,189$      26.9%

Total Operations Expense before Depreciation 9,553,625$      10,402,391$    8.9%

Depreciation expense 1,163,361$         1,381,819$         18.8%

Total General Fund Expenses 
10,716,986$    11,784,210$    10.0%
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South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 (FY 2015/16) 

 

Another change over previous years is the categorization on Capital Outlays to their respective fund 

centers. For example, those projects designated as Capital Replacement & Rehabilitation projects would 

be funded by accumulated depreciation; those projects designated as Capital Improvement projects (CIP) 

and Expansion projects are funded through the accumulation of the Sewer Participation fee; the remainder 

of the District’s projects would be pay-as-you-go through the General Fund. 

 

The District budgeted $1.276M in Capital Outlay during FY 2015/16 but only expended $495,000 

consisting of $75,910 in General Fund -100 projects,$259,533 in CIP & Expansion fund – 300 projects, 

and $159,558 in Capital Rehabilitation & Replacement fund – 400 projects. 

 

The District also received $1,957,750 in sewer asset contributions from new development. This included 

9.6 miles of gravity sewer pipe, and 30 manholes.  

 

A list of the District’s Capital Projects is included in Table 4.  

 

TABLE 4- CAPITAL OUTLAY ACTIVITY 

 
 

 

 

 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS  FY 15-16

FY 15-16  

Budget 

General Fund 

Capital -                     

100                 

CIP & 

Expansion - 

300

Capital 

Replacement & 

Rehabiliation - 

400

Board Room Furniture 6,100$              6,100$               

Board Room Audio/Visual upgrades 5,000$              -$                        

Corp Yard Storage Enclosure Upgrade 32,000$            32,000$            

Corp Yard Bathroom Renovation 7,500$              7,500$               

Corp Yard Vehicle Wash Facility Upgrades 5,500$              5,500$               

Bypass Equipment 77,000$            -$                        

Easement Roadway Replacements 35,000$            11,004$            20,762$            

Vehicle Replacement (x2) 125,000$         -$                        

Hydro-Vac Excavation Kit 6,000$              7,544$               

Portable Flow Recorder Replacement 32,000$            37,389$            

Hands-Free Communication 6,500$              4,486$              
CY & HQ Fire/Bldg Access Ctrl/HQLobby/Camera Security 50,000$            37,890$            10,187$            

Hydro Cleaning Nozzle - Chain Flail 7,800$              7,844$               

RPS Tyler Software Upgrades 10,000$            11,193$            

Solar Upgrades 200,000$         -$                       

Corp Yard/HQ Smart TV Screens 2,500$              1,615$              

Data Acquisition - Lucity 35,000$            20,915$            

System Rehabilitation 440,000$         

Lower Loomis Diversion Sewer - Final Design & R.O.W. 490,000$         43,119$         

Foothill Trunk Project - Design 230,000$         216,414$       

Foothill Trunk Project - Construction 640,000$         

HRF Pre-Design 100,000$         

GPS Survey Unit 13,600$            13,539$            

District Participation in Regional Projects 200,000$         
Total Capital Improvements 2,756,500$       75,910$             259,533$        159,558$           
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South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 (FY 2015/16) 

 

The District has a very conservative policy on how they invest their reserves. On February 4, 2016, the 

District adopted a strategy for the investment of District funds to optimize these investment balances that 

resulted in a significant increase in the rate of return (reported as interest in Table 2) on District funds 

over the previous year.  A breakdown analysis of the District’s Financial Statements for Cash and 

Investments are summarized in Table 5.  

 

SPMUD Total cash and investments increased by almost $4.76M (10.41%) over last year from $45.67M 

to $50.43M; The District will be drawing down some of these reserves in future years to fund ongoing 

pay-as-you-go construction projects and to conform with the District’s adopted reserve policy. 

 

TABLE 5- CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCES 

 

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND FISCAL YEAR 2015/16 BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

A comparison of previous year’s results and the adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2015/16 is included in 

Table 6.  

 

Revenue - The Economic forecast for growth within the District’s service area boundaries looks 

favorable. There is now a backlog of development proposal under review which should allow the District  

 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND FISCAL YEAR 2016/17 BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

A comparison of previous year’s results and the adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2016/17 is included in 

Tables 6 through 8.  

 

Revenue - The Economic forecast for growth within the District’s service area boundaries looks 

favorable. There is now a backlog of development proposal under review which should allow the District 

to add about 500 EDUs during the next fiscal year, the Federal Government has kept its benchmark 

interest rate at a range between zero and one-quarter percent and this will continue to depress interest 

income received on investments. The District will be reviewing its investment policy to enhance revenue 

potential through diversification of the investment portfolio. Accounting for all revenue sources indicates 

that revenues will continue to be flat. Staff anticipates the preparation of a 5-year financial plan during the 

coming year. 

 

 

TABLE 6- FY 2016/17 BUDGET REVIEW  

SPMUD REVENUE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASH & INVESTMENT ACCOUNT BALANCES

Fiscal Yr  

2014/15

Fiscal Yr  

2015/16

% Change 

over previous

PLACER COUNTY TREASURY POOLED CASH - PCTIP 35,048,340$      5,026,138$        -85.66%

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND  - LAIF 9,763,453$        5,004,902$        -48.74%

CALTRUST -$                         19,112,690$      100.00%

WELLS FARGO INVESTMENTS -$                         18,131,214$      100.00%

CHECKING ACCOUNT - CASH ON HAND 862,369$            3,155,631$        265.93%

UNREALIZED GAIN/LOSS -$                         193,120$            100.00%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS (END OF FY) 45,674,162$      50,623,695$      10.84%

 

Total General Fund Revenue 11,799,723$        11,354,976$        11,837,434$        

Total Capital Fund Revenue 1,276,340$           1,443,773$           2,145,794$           

TOTAL SPMUD REVENUE 13,076,063$       12,798,749$       13,983,228$       

BUDGETED             

FISCAL YR                          

16/17 

FISCAL YR                          

14/15         SPMUD REVENUE
FISCAL YR                          

15/16    
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South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 (FY 2015/16) 

 

Personnel - SPMUD has 39 approved personnel positions that include 5 elected, 2 contracted, 4 

management, 2 supervisors, and 26 staff positions; there are currently 27 FTE. The MOU’s for employees 

and management was negotiated in FY14 for FY15 thru FY17 and Cost of Living Increases are tied to the 

Consumer Cost Index. Management has elected to forego seasonal hiring of temporary workers as a cost 

savings measure. 

 

Expenses - Indexes for fuel oil, gasoline, electricity, and natural gas have been declining which is helping 

to keep those related costs down. The district has been successful keeping a cap on locally controlled 

expenses as well. Total charges from SPWA continue to rise, although the District expects them to drop 

in the coming years. The drought has impacted flows to sewers which may necessitate a review of the 

sewage allocation to the RWWTP by the SPWA partners. 

 

TABLE 7 – FY 2016/17 BUDGET REVIEW  

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FISCAL YR                          

2014/15         

FISCAL YR                          

2015/16       

BUDGETED 

FISCAL YR 

2016/17

Salaries/Wages 1,891,189$     1,957,192$     1,800,000$       

FICA - Social Security 148,117$        148,117$        138,200$           

CalPERS Retirement 378,230$        450,481$        466,000$           

457 Retirement 44,150$           39,960$           44,600$             

Insurance Benefits 486,146$        505,351$        540,000$           

Pers OPEB 185,421$        203,965$        225,000$           

Sub Total Salaries & Benefits 3,133,253$     3,305,066$     3,213,800$       

Property & Liability Insurance 93,933$           92,070$           110,000$           

Professional Services 360,800$        335,261$        120,000$           

Vehicle Repair and Maintenance 64,329$           55,333$           56,000$             

Professional Development 47,595$           31,479$           48,000$             

Legal Services 63,679$           66,913$           100,000$           

Utility Billing/Banking Expense 147,194$        150,350$        140,000$           

General Operating Supplies & Maintenance 155,007$        139,038$        126,000$           

Gas & Oil Expenses 42,487$           25,617$           35,000$             

Utilities 97,376$           105,851$        104,000$           

Repair/Maintenance Agreements 42,396$           56,212$           73,000$             

Regulatory Compliance/Government Fees 28,396$           13,857$           40,000$             

Other Operating Expenses 685,663$        199,155$        256,000$           

Sub Total Local SPMUD General Fund Expenses 1,828,855$     1,271,136$     1,208,000$       

RWWTP Maintenance & Operations 3,614,539$     4,513,821$     4,600,000$       

RWWTP Rehab & Replacement 976,978$        1,312,368$     1,320,000$       

Sub Total SPWA O&M + R&R Expenses 4,591,517$     5,826,189$     5,920,000$       

Total Operations Expense before Depreciation 9,553,625$     10,402,391$   10,341,800$     

Depreciation expense 1,163,361$     1,381,819$     1,350,600$       

Total General Fund Expenses 
10,716,986$   11,784,210$   11,692,400$     
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South Placer Municipal Utility District 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 (FY 2015/16) 

 

Capital – The District anticipates increased capital facility construction in the coming years with the 

installation of the Foothill Trunk and the Loomis Basin Diversion Trunk. The District has sufficient funds 

available to construct these facilities on a pay-as-you-go and does not anticipate the need to secure debt to 

finance these upcoming projects. The District will be drawing down some of these reserves in future years 

to fund these ongoing construction projects and to conform with the District’s adopted reserve policy.  

 

 

TABLE 8 – FY 2016/17 BUDGET REVIEW  

CAPITAL INVESTMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

 

This Financial Report is designed to provide the District’s customers and other interested parties with a 

general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability.  Questions 

about this report should be addressed to the General Manager, in writing to: SPMUD, 5807 Springview 

Drive, Rocklin, CA  95677, or by telephone at (916) 786-8555. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAPITAL INVESTMENT

 FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16  BUDGETED                                          

FY 2016/17 

CIP 619,872.00$            259,533.00$    2,061,000.00$              

R&R 738,490.00$            159,558.00$    1,049,000.00$              

SUBTOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,358,362.00$         419,091.00$    3,110,000.00$              

GENERAL FUND IMPROVEMENTS 106,503.00$            75,910.00$      445,500.00$                 

TOTAL ANNUAL INVESTMENT 1,464,865.00$         495,001.00$    3,555,500.00$              
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ASSETS

 Operating 

Fund

CIP            

Fund

Capital 

Replacement 

Fund Total

CURRENT  

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 5,372,908 $ 3,945,994       $ 3,867,769       $ 13,186,671

Short Term Investments 8,253,913 14,595,947     14,394,045 37,243,905

Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance for 3,702,548 -                   -                   3,702,548

Doubtful Accounts)

Note Receivable, Current -                  65,706           -                   65,706

Prepaid Expenses 53,884 -                   53,884

Total Current Assets 17,383,253   18,607,647     18,261,814     54,252,714    - 

FIXED ASSETS

Depreciable Capital Assets(net) 62,016,560 -                   62,016,560

Non Depreciable Capital Assets 1,398,769 -                   -                   1,398,769

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS (NET) 63,415,329 -                   63,415,329

Note Receivable, Net of Current Portion -                  5,021,786 -                   5,021,786

TOTAL ASSETS $ 80,798,582   $ 23,629,433     $  18,261,814     $ 122,689,829 

LIABILITIES & NET POSITION

CURRENT

Accounts Payable $ 147,831 $ -                   $ -                   $ 147,831

Other Accrued Liabilities 187,322 -                   -                   187,322

OPEB Liability -                  -                   -                   0

Compensated Absences 149,945 -                   -                   149,945

Note Payable, Current 65,706 -                   -                   65,706

Deferred Participation Agreements -                  -                   -                   0

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 550,804        -                   -                   550,804       

Note Payable, Net of Current Portion 5,021,786 -                   5,021,786     

Deferred Participation Agreements -                  595,692 -                   595,692

Aggregate Net Pension Liability 2,403,545 -                   -                   2,403,545

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,976,135     595,692         -                   8,571,827     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred  Net Pension Liability 580,173 -                   -                   580,173

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 58,393,543   -                   -                   58,393,543

Restricted Funds -                  5,021,786       -                   5,021,786

Unrestricted Fund Balance 13,848,731   18,011,955       $  18,261,814     50,122,500

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 72,242,274   $ 23,033,741 $ 18,261,814 $ 113,537,829 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET POSITION $ 80,798,582   $ 23,629,433     $ 18,261,814     $ 122,689,829 

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

(Audited)

AS OF JUNE 30, 2016
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`

 Operating 

Fund

CIP            

Fund

Capital 

Replacement 

Fund Total

REVENUES

Sewer Charges $ 10,911,091 $ -                    $ -                   $ 10,911,091    

Connection Charges -                    1,443,773 -                   1,443,773     

Permits, Fees, and Inspections 443,885 -                    -                   443,885        

Total Fees and Charges $ 11,354,976     $ 1,443,773       $ -                   $ 12,798,749    

OPERATING EXPENSES

Collection and Treatment 6,447,778       28,344           -                   6,476,122     

Administration and General 1,269,273       -                    -                   1,269,273     

Technical Services 2,106,383       -                    -                   2,106,383     

Depreciation 1,381,819       -                    -                   1,381,819     

Total Operating Expenses $ 11,205,253     $ 28,344           $ -                   $ 11,233,597    

INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS $ 149,723        $ 1,415,429     $ -                   $ 1,565,152   

Tax Revenue 790,587 -                    -                   790,587        

Interest Income 104,626 599,492 121,486 825,604        

Interest Expense (122,564) -                    -                   (122,564)       

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers $ 922,372          $ 2,014,921       $ 121,486         $ 3,058,779     

Net Transfers from Operating Fund -                    (15,689,110) 18,140,328 2,451,218     

Net Transfers to Capital Maintenance Fund (2,451,218)      -                    -                   (2,451,218)    

Capital Contributions 1,957,751 -                    -                   1,957,751     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 428,905        $ (13,674,189)  $ 18,261,814   $ 5,016,530   

Net Position, Beginning of Year $ 71,813,369 $ 36,707,930 $ 0 $ 108,521,299  

Net Position, End of Year $ 72,242,274     $ 23,033,741     $ 18,261,814     $ 113,537,829  

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

(Audited)

AS OF JUNE 30, 2016
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 Operating 

Fund

CIP            

Fund

Capital 

Replacement 

Fund Total

Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Receipts from Customers $ 11,354,976   $ 2,853,417 $ -                 $ 14,208,393   

Payments for Employee Services (2,821,307)   -                 -                 (2,821,307)   

Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (1,559,678)   (28,344)        -                 (1,588,022)   

Payments to City of Roseville (5,826,189)   -                 -                 (5,826,189)   

Cash Provided by (used in) Operations $ 1,147,802     $ 2,825,073     $ -                 $ 3,972,875     

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:

Tax Revenue $ 790,587       $ -                 $ -                 $ 790,587       

Deferred Pension Inflows (188,700)      (188,700)      

Net Transfers from Operating Fund (2,451,218)   -                 -                 (2,451,218)   

Net Transfers to/from Capital Funds -                 (15,689,110)  18,140,328   2,451,218     

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:

Contributed Assets 1,957,751     -                 -                 1,957,751     

Note Payable (73,973)        73,973         -                 -                 

Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities $ 34,447         $ (15,615,137)  $ 18,140,328   $ 2,559,638     

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest Income $ 104,626       $ 599,492       $ 121,486       $ 825,604       

Interest Expense (122,564)      -                 -                 (122,564)      

Investment in Short Term Investments (8,253,913)   (14,595,947)  (14,394,045)  (37,243,905)  

Additions to Fixed Assets (2,479,139)   -                 -                 (2,479,139)   

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities $ (10,750,990)  $ (13,996,455)  $ (14,272,559)  $ (39,020,004)  

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ (9,568,741)   $ (26,786,519)  $ 3,867,769     $ (32,487,491)  

Net Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year $ 14,941,649   $ 30,732,513   $ -                 $ 45,674,162   

Net Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 5,372,908     $ 3,945,994     $ 3,867,769     $ 13,186,671   

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Audited)

AS OF JUNE 30, 2016
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 Operating 

Fund

CIP            

Fund

Capital 

Replacement 

Fund Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by

Operating Activities

Income (Loss) From Operations $ 149,723       $ 1,415,429     $ -                 $ 1,565,152     

Items Not Requiring An Outlay of Cash:

Depreciation $ 1,381,819     $ -                 $ -                 $ 1,381,819     

Deferred Compensation Arrangements (188,700)      -                 -                 (188,700)      

Changes in Working Capital:

Accounts Receivable $ 315,986       $ -                 $ -                 $ 315,986       

Interest Receivable -                 21,640         -                 21,640         

Refund Receivable -                 1,536,167     -                 1,536,167     

Prepaid Expenses (38,719)        -                 -                 (38,719)        

Accounts Payable (652,847)      -                 -                 (652,847)      

Accrued Expenses 13,755         -                 -                 13,755         

OPEB Liability 165,031       -                 -                 165,031       

Compensated Absences 1,754           -                 -                 1,754           

Deferred Participation Agreements -                 (148,163)      -                 (148,163)      

Adjustments to Working Capital $ (195,040)      $ 1,409,644     $ -                 $ 1,214,604     

Cash Provided by (Used in) Operations $ 1,147,802     $ 2,825,073     $ -                 $ 3,972,875     

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Audited)

AS OF JUNE 30, 2016
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The South Placer Municipal Utility District operates under the Municipal Utility District Act. The Act 

permits formation of multipurpose government agencies to provide public services on a regional basis. In 

accordance with the Act, voters approved creating the South Placer Municipal Utility District to provide 

sewage disposal facilities. The District's governing body is a Board of Directors comprised of 5 members 

with 4 year staggered terms. 

A. Reporting Entity: 

The District has defined its reporting entity in accordance with generally accepted accounting  

principles, which provides guidance for determining which governmental activities, organizations, and 

functions should be included in the reporting entity. In evaluating how to define the District for 

financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units. The primary 

criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's 

financial accountability.  A primary governmental entity is financially accountable if it appoints a 

voting majority of a component unit's governing body and it is able to impose its will on the 

component unit, or if there is a potential for the component unit to provide specific financial benefits 

to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also 

be financially accountable if a component unit is fiscally dependent on the primary governmental 

entity regardless of a separately elected governing board, a governing board appointed by a higher 

level of government, or a jointly appointed board. 

B. Fund Accounting: 

The accounting records of the District are organized on the generally accepted basis of accounting for 

an enterprise fund.  An enterprise fund is used to account for the District's sewage disposal operations 

that is financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of 

the Board of Directors is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services to the 

general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.   

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primarily 

operation of the fund. All other revenues are reported as nonoperating revenues. Operating expenses 

are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are 

reported as nonoperating expenses. 

C. Basis of Accounting: 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. This 

accounting method conforms to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of  

Page 40 of 94



  

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Audited) 

  

June 30, 2016 

  

 

See independent accountant’s audit report                                                                                                             20 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Basis of Accounting (continued): 

America.  Generally accepted accounting principles require all proprietary funds to use the accrual 

basis of accounting. The revenues are recognized when they are earned. Expenses are recognized 

under the accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred. 

D. Prepaid Expenses: 

Accounts for prepaid health insurance and prepaid liability insurance. 

E. Cash Equivalents: 

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the District considers cash and cash equivalents as short-

term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near 

to their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value. This includes bank accounts, 

cash with Placer County and deposits with the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 

(LAIF). 

F. Budgetary Reporting: 

The District prepares an annual operating and capital budget which is approved and adopted by the 

Board of Directors. The budget serves as an approved plan to facilitate financial control and 

operational evaluation. California State law does not require formal adoption of appropriated budgets 

for enterprise funds. 

G. Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 

the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 

from those estimates. 

H. Capital Contributions: 

Transmission and distribution system assets contributed to the District by installers are capitalized at 

the installers estimated cost, which approximates fair value at the time of the District's acquisition, and 

is recorded as capital contributions when received. 

 

Page 41 of 94



  

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Audited) 

  

June 30, 2016 

  

 

See independent accountant’s audit report                                                                                                             21 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

I. Risk Management: 

The District maintains an insurance policy with American Alternative Insurance that provides limits of 

liability for general liability, auto and an additional umbrella policy. The District also maintains 

workers compensation insurance through Special District Risk Management Authority, with the 

employer's liability limit of $10,000,000 per occurrence. 

J. Net Position: 

Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating income, non-operating revenues and 

expenses and capital contributions. Net position is classified in the following three components: 

Net investment in capital assets -This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of 

accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or 

other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to 

the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that 

portion of the debt is included in the same net position component as the unspent proceeds. 

Restricted -This component of net position consists of constraints imposed any creditors (such as 

through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 

constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. At June 30, 2016, 

all of the restricted net position consisted of total outstanding Newcastle Sanitary District (NSD) loan 

receivable balance. South Placer Municipal Utility District and Newcastle Sanitary District have 

entered into agreements relating to the annexation of the NSD service area to SPMUD and the 

financing of the ‘NSD project’ costs associated with the annexation required the creation of the 

Newcastle Special Benefit Area (NSBA) for the adoption of levying of a project-related service charge 

(PRSC) for the repayment of said financing. Under SPMUD Resolutions 12-19 and 13-13, PRSC 

should be used exclusively to repay the principal and interest on the amount repayable.  

Unrestricted net position -This component of net position consists of net position that do not meet the 

definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

K. Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences represent the vested portion of accumulated vacation leave. In accordance with 

GASB 16, the liability for accumulated leave includes all salary - related payments that are directly 

and incrementally connected with leave payments to employees. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

L. Property Taxes 

The District receives property taxes from Placer County, which has been assigned the responsibility 

for assessment, collections, and apportionment of property taxes for all taxing jurisdictions within the 

county. Secured property taxes are levied on January 1 for the following fiscal year and on which date 

it becomes a lien on real property. 

Secured property taxes are due in two installments on November 1 and February 1 and are delinquent 

after December 10 and April 10, respectively, for the secured roll. Based on a policy by the County 

called the Teeter Plan, 100% of the allocated taxes are transmitted by the County to the District, 

eliminating the need for an allowance for uncollectible taxes. The County, in return, receives all 

penalties and interest. Property taxes on the unsecured roll are due on the January 1 lien date and 

become delinquent if unpaid by August 31. Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year they 

are received. 

M. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not 

available. Capital assets include land, buildings, sewer system, equipment, office furniture and 

vehicles.  Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 

than $5,000. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 

extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 

capitalized as projects are constructed. Depreciation is recorded on the straight-line basis over the 

useful life of the assets as follows: 

 

 

 

 

Assets Useful Life

Buildings 15-25 years

Sewer system 75 years

General equipment 10-20 years

Office Furniture and vehicles 5-15 years
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

N. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 

inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 

position of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and additions 

to/deductions from CalPERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 

are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 

contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 

are reported at fair value. 

 

Note 2: Cash and Investments 

Cash and equivalents as reported on the balance sheet at June 30, 2016, consisted of the following: 

 

A. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Entity's Investment 

Policy 

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the South Placer Municipal 

Utility District (District) by California Government Code §53601 (or the District's investment policy, 

where more restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code 

(or the District's investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk 

and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond 

trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general 

provisions of the California Government Code or the District investment policy. 

 

 

 

Component Amounts

General Checking $ 3,155,630

LAIF Account 5,004,902

Placer County Treasury 5,026,139

Total cash and equivalents $ 13,186,671
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (continued) 

A. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code §53601 and the Entity's 

Investment Policy (continued) 

 
 

B. Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 

institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposit or will not be able to recover collateral 

securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the 

risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a 

government will not be able to recover the value of its investment of collateral securities that are in the 

possession of another party. The California Government Code and the District's investment policy do 

not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for 

deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government 

Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by 

pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law 

(unless so waived by the government unit). The fair value or the pledged securities in the collateral 

pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also 

allows financial institutions to secure the District's deposits by pledging first deed mortgage notes 

having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

 

Authorized Investment Type

Maximum 

Maturity % of Portfolio

One Issue 

Limitation

Investment pools authorized under CA statute

goverend by Government Code: $40 Million

   Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 75% No Limit

   Placer County Treasurer’s Invest. Pool N/A 75% No Limit

   Investment Trust of CA (CalTrust) N/A 75% No Limit

Bank Savings Account 180 Days 75% No Limit

Federal Agencies 5 Years 25% No Limit

Commercial Paper 180 Days 15% No Limit

Negotiable Certificates of Deposits 180 Days 20% No Limit

Re-Purchase Agreements 180 Days 20% No Limit

US Treasury Obligations 5 Years No Limit No Limit

Any other allowed investments under

CGC §53601 Limited 20% No Limit
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (continued) 

C. Concentrations of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the District contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any 

one issuer. There are no investments to one issuer exceeding those limits. 

D. Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 

and investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its 

fair value to changes in market interest rates. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate 

fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments 

by remaining maturity: 

 

E. Investment in State Investment Pool and Other Investments 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated 

by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. 

The fair value of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial 

statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for 

the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for 

withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF which are recorded on an 

amortized cost basis. 

 

Investment Type Totals 0-12 Months 13-48 Months

State Investment Pool $ 5,004,902 $ 5,004,902 $ -                  

Placer County Pooled Cash 5,026,139 5,026,139 -                  

Investment Trust of CA (CalTrust) 19,112,690 4,021,927 15,090,763    

CDs and Marketable Securities 18,131,214 - 18,131,214

Totals $ 47,274,945 $ 14,052,968 $ 33,221,977

Remaining Maturity
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Note 2: Cash and Investments (continued) 

E. Investment in State Investment Pool and Other Investments (continued) 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Placer County Treasurer’s Investment Portfolio that is 

administered by the Placer County Treasurer.  Its primary objective is to safeguard the principal of the 

funds under its control and to meet any liquidity needs of the depositor.  Maximizing the rate of return 

is performed consistent with the objectives of safeguarding principal and meeting liquidity needs. 

The fair value of the District's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial 

statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County 

Treasurer for the entire portfolio under its control. 

The District is a voluntary participant in the Investment Trust of California (CalTrust).  CalTrust is a 

program operated by the joint powers authority to offer a high level of current income consistent with 

preservation of principal.  It offers short and medium term bond funds.  The objective of the 

investment policy is to obtain the best possible return commensurate with the degree of risk that 

participants are willing to assume in obtaining such return. 

The District has a portfolio Brokerage account managed by Wells Fargo Securities.  This portfolio is 

primarily invested in bonds issued by government sponsored enterprises and bank certificate of 

deposits.  The portfolio is organized with staggered maturity dates.  This structure assures part of the 

portfolio is liquidating at par value on a regular basis. 

All investments are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No, 31, 

which requires governmental entities to report certain investments at fair value in the balance sheet and 

recognize the corresponding change in fair value of investments in the year in which the change 

occurred. The District reports its investments at fair value based on quoted market information 

obtained from fiscal agents or other sources if the change is material to the financial statements.  The 

recognition of fair value includes unrealized gains and losses are reported as part of the yearly 

portfolio income or loss. 

Note 3: Note Receivable and Note Payable 

In February 2014, the Newcastle Sanitary District was merged into South Placer Municipal Utility 

District and is now a service ward of the District. This loan was absorbed with the transfer of the capital 

assets contributed by the Newcastle Sanitary District. 

The District loaned funds to Newcastle Sanitary District (NSD) for the purpose of covering the cost of 

several reconstruction tasks required in connection with NSD facilities upgrades and regulatory 

compliance issues. The total outstanding loan amount as of June 30, 2016, was $5,087,492.  
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Note 3: Note Receivable and Note Payable (continued) 

Interest on the principal amount accrues at an annual rate of 2.5%. The principal and interest charges are 

being billed quarterly to NSD customers at $54 per month over a 40 year payback period. 

 

Note 4: Capital Assets 

 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows: 

June 30, 2015 Additions Retirements June 30, 2016

Buildings $ 3,173,847     $ 36,493       $ -                $ 3,210,340     

Sewer System 73,178,305   2,034,564  -                75,212,869   

Equipment 1,178,019     164,223     -                1,342,242     

Office Furniture 195,084       12,082       207,166       

Vehicles 1,552,995     18,613       1,571,608     

Less Accumulated

Depreciation (18,101,962)  (1,425,703) (19,527,665)  

Total Capital Assets being 61,176,288   840,272     -                62,016,560   

Depreciated (net)

Land 1,139,235     -                1,139,235     

Construction in Progress 46,370         213,164     259,534       

Total Capital Assets not 1,185,605     213,164     -                1,398,769     

being Depreciated

Total Capital Assets (net) $ 62,361,893   $ 1,053,436  $ -                $ 63,415,329   

 

Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

A. Plan Description 

The District's defined benefit pension plan, the California Public Employees' Retirement System, 

provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to 

plan members and beneficiaries. The California Public Employees' Retirement System is part of the 

Public Agency portion of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent 

multiple employer plan administered by CalPERS, which acts as a common investment and 

administrative agent for participating public employers within the state of California menu of benefit 

provisions as well as other requirements are established by State statutes within the Public Employees' 
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

 A. Plan Description (continued) 

Retirement  Law. The District selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract 

with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through local ordinance (other local methods). CalPERS 

issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial 

report can be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

B. Funding Policy 

Active plan members in the 2.7%@ 55 Tier I plan are required to contribute 8% of all earnings in 

excess of $133.33 per month. As a benefit to the District employees, the District contributes the 

employee required contribution. For those employees hired on or after April 20, 2012 the District has 

implemented a 2% @ 55 Tier II plan which reduces the amount of employee contribution paid by the 

District to 7%.  The district is required to contribute the actuarially determined remaining amounts 

necessary to fund the benefits for its members. For new employees hired after January 1, 2013 the 

District benefit formula changed to a 2% @ 62 Tier III where the employee contributes the full 

employee contribution of 6.25% of all earnings in excess of $133.33 per month. The actuarial methods 

and assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required 

employer contribution rates for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was 15.685% for Tier I, 10.282% for 

Tier II. The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute and the 

employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS. 

C. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to Pension 

As of June 30, 2014, the last valuation date available , the District reported net pension asset of   $0 

and net pension liability of $2,403,545. 

 

 

Proportionate 

Share

Net 

Pension 

Asset

Net Pension 

Liability

PERF C - Miscellaneous Second Tier Program 0.00004% -$          2,761$        

PERF C - Miscellaneous Program 0.03858% -$          2,400,776$  

PERF C - PEPRA Miscellaneous Program 0.00000% -$          8$              

Total Net Pension Asset / Liability -$          2,403,545$  
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

C. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to Pension (continued) 

The net pension and asset liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability 

used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 

1, 2014 and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion of the net 

pension asset and liability was based on a projection of the long-term share of contributions to the 

pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers. 

For the year ended June 30, 2014, recognized pension expense of $207,192 and pension income of 

$902. At June 30, 2014, the reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 

related to pensions from the following sources: 

  

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources   

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience  $                       -     $                     -  

Changes in assumptions  $                       -     $                     -  

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments  $                       -     $         610,472  

Changes in proportion and differences between 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions  $              35,771     $             6,630  

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date  $                       -     $                     -  

Total  $              35,771     $         617,102  

 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 

pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31

Deferred Outflows 

(Inflows) of Resources

2016 (188,058)$                       

2017 (191,347)$                       

2018 (201,926)$                       

2019 -$                                  

2020 -$                                   
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

C. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to Pension (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liability in the June 30, 2014, actuarial valuation was 

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 

measurement: 

Inflation

Salary increases

Investment rate of return

2.75%

Varies by Entry Age and Service

7.50%, net of pension plan investment expense,

 

Active member mortality rates are a function of the member’s gender, occupation, and age and are 

developed based upon plan experience. Retiree mortality assumptions were based on CalPERS’ 

specific data that includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. 

For more details, please refer to the 2014 experience study report. 

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an 

actuarial experience study for the fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, 

mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS’ website 

under Forms and Publications. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-

block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 

net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 

ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future 

real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  

The 7.50% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation of 2.50%, a real return of 

5.00% that is net of investment expense. 
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

C. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to Pension (continued) 

The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for major asset class are 

summarized in the following table: 

New Strategic 

Allocation

Real Return 

Years 1 - 10

Real Return 

Years 11+

Global Equity 47.00% 5.25% 5.71%

Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%

Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%

Private Equity 12.00% 6.83% 6.95%

Real estate 11.00% 4.50% 5.13%

Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 4.50% 5.09%

Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%

Totals 100.00% 27.62%

Inflation 2.50%

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 3.00%
 

Discount rate:  

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. To determine whether 

the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS 

stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the 

actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. 

Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate 

calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.50 percent is applied to all 

plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress test results are presented in a detailed 

report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the 

GASB 68 section. 
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

C. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 

Inflows of Resources Related to Pension (continued) 

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the 

discount rate:  

The following represents the proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 

discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability would 

be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50 percent) or 1-

percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate: 

Discount Rate -1% 

(6.50%)

Current Discount 

Rate (7.50%)

Discount Rate 

+1% (8.50%)

Plan's Net Pension 

Liability/(Asset) 4,282,374$            2,403,545$         844,295$           

 

Note 6: Deferred Compensation Plan 

Employees of South Placer Municipal Utility District may elect to participate in a deferred compensation 

plan, as defined in the Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The contributions to the plan are voluntary. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with these 

amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or made available 

to the employees or beneficiaries) solely the property and rights of the employees and their beneficiaries. 

No part of the principal or income of the trust shall revert to the employer or be used for or diverted for 

purposes other than for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. The district has 

selected CalPERS as the third party administrators of the plan assets. Due to the fact that the District does 

not administer this plan, the plan activities are not included in the District financial statements. The 

District matches up to a maximum per pay period based on the most current contract with the General 

Manager and the most current Memorandum of Understanding with all other employees.  The District's 

annual pension cost for the matching contributions under the 457 deferred compensation plan was 

$33,308. 
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Note 7: Post Retirement Health Care Benefits 

Plan Description 

South Placer Public Utility District's Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan is a single employer defined 

benefit healthcare plan administered by CalPERS. CalPERS provides medical insurance benefits and 

life insurance benefits to eligible retirees and their eligible dependents. The District approved post 

retirement health insurance benefits for all of its employees effective July 1, 2007 under the Public 

Employees' Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). Retirement eligibility is determined based 

on a minimum of reaching age 50 with at least 5 years of employment with the District. For an 

employee retiring with 5 or more years of service with SPMUD, the District will contribute the health 

benefit cost for the retiree and family members up to 100% of the greater of the CalPERS family rate 

for Kaiser. A retiree with less than 5 complete years of service with the District receives no benefit, 

unless they have previous employment qualifying them for CalPERS retirement, in which case they 

are eligible to receive the CalPERS minimum at the time of retirement. The CalPERS minimum is set 

by law. The retiree is on the same medical plan as the District's active employees, however monthly 

rates for coverage of covered active and retired employees are computed separately. As of June 30, 

2016, there were 15 retired employees who qualified for the healthcare plan.  The District also 

provides a life insurance benefit for each former employee with ten or more years of service who 

retires from the District. The amount of the life insurance benefit is $15,000 ($25,000 in the case of 

District management employees). 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 

understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the 

time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and 

plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 

designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 

value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. In the July 1, 2015 

actuarial valuation, the entry age normal cost, level percent of pay funding method is used. The entry 

age normal cost method spreads plan costs for each participant from the entry date to the expected 

retirement date, of prior service costs.  For retirees, the AAL is the present value of all projected 

benefits.  The asset valuation method was based on market value of assets in the OPEB trust. 

The actuarial assumptions included a 7.28% investment rate of return. The valuation assumes that 

100% of eligible retirees will actually participate in the retiree medical benefit. The annual healthcare 

cost trend rate of 8.5% initially, decreasing approximately .5% per year until reaching an ultimate rate 

of 4.5% for fiscal year ending 2023 and later. It was assumed salary increases will be 3.00% per 

annum. 
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Note 7: Post Retirement Health Care Benefits (continued) 

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirement of the District to contribute to the plan is established and may be 

amended by the Board.  Currently, employees are not required to contribute to the plan.  The District's 

contributions are calculated on a pre funding basis using entry age normal cost, with investment gains 

and losses amortized over the remaining 24 year period with payments determined on a level percent 

of pay basis. The District has prefunded the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) based on a calculation 

of the annual required contribution certified by an actuarial valuation service. The District chose the 

California Employers Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) as the trustee for the plan. The District made 

the net contribution for fiscal year end June 30, 2016 by paying health insurance providers or 

reimbursing to the retiree premiums paid by the retiree. These reimbursements were not funded by 

CERBT. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The District's annual other post-employment benefit 

(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based all the annual required contribution of the employer 

(ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. 

The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal 

cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to 

exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the District's annual OPEB cost for 

the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in the District's net OPEB 

obligation to South Placer Public Utility District's Healthcare Plan: 

 

Three year disclosure of the District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 

contributed to the plan and the net OPEB obligation is as follows: 

 

 

Retiree Healthcare Premium Costs $ 161,824       

Amortization of UAAL 113,283       

Interest to Fiscal Year End 20,027         

ARC for Current Fiscal Year 295,134       

Decrease in Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) -                 

Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) - Beginning of Year -                 

Net OPEB Obligation (Asset) - End of Year $ -                 
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Note 7: Post Retirement Health Care Benefits (continued) 

 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability (AAL) was 

$5,596,626 and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) for benefits was $1,770,730. The 

District's plan was considered fully funded at June 30, 2008 because the District made a retrospective 

adoption prefunding the annual required contribution including the UAAL in the 2007-2008 fiscal year. 

While the initial unfunded actuarial accrued liability was fully funded as of June 30, 2008, investment 

losses and actual investment returns, compared to original assumptions, on the initial contribution created 

a $1,770,730 unfunded accrued liability as of July 1, 2015 the most recent actuarial valuation date. The 

District has chosen to amortize the $1,770,730 unfunded accrued liability over the remaining 24 year 

period with payments determined on a level percent of pay. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan 

involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of 

events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the 

healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 

contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 

expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

The following schedule of funding progress shows multi-year trend information about whether the 

actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued 

liabilities for benefits is available. 

Valuation Date

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liabilities

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Assets

Unfunded 

Actuarial 

Liability

Funded 

Ratio

Annual 

Covered 

Payroll

UL as a 

% of 

Payroll

July 1, 2011 3,062,219$ 2,729,321$  332,898$    89.1% 1,387,068$ 24.0%

July 1, 2013 3,496,648$ 3,181,069$  315,579$    91.1% 1,425,554$ 22.1%

July 1, 2015 5,596,626$ 3,825,896$  1,770,730$ 68.0% 1,671,388$ 105.9%  

Annual 

OPEB Cost

% of Annual 

OPEB Cost 

Funded

Net OPEB 

Obligation

June 30, 2013 165,289     100% -               

June 30, 2014 183,883     100% -               

June 30, 2015 295,134     100% -               

June 30, 2016 295,134     100% -               
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Note 8: Joint Powers Agreement 

On October 1, 2000 the South Placer Wastewater Authority was created to finance and construct the new 

Pleasant Grove treatment plant along with expanding facilities at the Dry Creek plant and other regional 

facilities. The Authority is made up or the City of Roseville, Placer County and South Placer Municipal 

Utility District. The composition of the Board of Directors for the Authority is two directors appointed by 

the City of Roseville, two directors appointed by Placer County and one director appointed by South 

Placer Municipal Utility District. The agreement provides that the City will own and operate the regional 

facilities. The Authority originally issued a total of $179,775,000 of fixed and variable rate bonds and 

later refunded to obtain more favorable interest rates in a combination of fixed, SIFMA Index and 

variable rate bonds.  The agreement was also amended effective October 1, 2012.  South Placer Municipal 

Utility District proportionate share decreased from its original allocation of 25% to 22.43% for the shared 

operating costs and debt service on these bonds. Bond payments are funded by regional connection fees 

charged by the District and remitted to the City of Roseville.  Total connection fees collected by the 

District and paid to the Authority under this agreement, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 was 

$6,055,684. The financial statements for the South Placer Wastewater Authority are available online at 

http://roseville.ca.us/gov/finance/general_accounting/spwa.asp 

The District is responsible for its share of maintenance and operation expenses incurred at the Regional 

Treatment plants based on the volume of flow from District lines as a percentage of total volume of flow 

into the plants. The total amount calculated for South Placer Municipal Utility District during the fiscal 

year ended June 30, 2016 for maintenance and operation expenses was $4,513,821 and an additional 

$1,312,368 for the Districts share of rehab project costs. 

Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies 

The District is responsible for maintenance and operation expenses incurred at the Regional Treatment 

plant based on the volume of flow from District lines as a percentage of total volume of flow into the 

plant. The share of the District cost is subject to periodic review and recalculations. The amount paid 

versus recalculated amounts can vary resulting in additional costs or credits to the District. 

In the normal course of business, the District is subject to various lawsuits. Defense of lawsuits is 

typically handled by the District's insurance carrier and losses, if any, are expected to be covered by 

insurance. The District’s insurance carrier also covers defense costs that are not recovered from the 

opposing side upon successful resolution. 

At June 30, 2016, the District had commitments with respect to various engineering services and 

construction projects. 
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Note 9: Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 

Over the years, a number of agreements have been entered into by the District and local developers for 

installation of wastewater servicing facilities to the developer's projects.  The developers constructed and 

installed the wastewater facilities at their own expense and thereafter dedicated said facilities to the 

District for public use.  In return the Developers will receive partial reimbursement from construction fees 

actually collected on the properties within the project area, through the Agreement period.  No contingent 

liability to the District is incurred for the uncollected portion of the agreed maximum amount. 

 

 

 

 

Project Name

Max 

Reimbursement EDUs Benefited

Croftwood Offsite Sewer (Sierra College) 186,010$           1958

Poppy Ridge II Annexation 3,620$              36

Sierra College Annexation 2,951,158$        612

Yankee Hill Estates (Middle Antelope Creek) 217,375$           925

Rocklin 60 – Phase I 68,255$            999

Rocklin 60 – Phase II 139,621$           999
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Administrative 

and General

Collection and 

Treatment

Technical 

Services Total

OPERATING EXPENSES

Repairs and Maintenance $ -                   $ 4,801,765      $ 16,581     $ 4,818,346   

Salaries and Wages 443,163         1,089,847      424,182    1,957,192   

Employee Benefits 368,363         249,616        91,340     709,319     

Professional Fees 264,871         44,941          25,449     335,261     

Retirement 70,197           170,954        63,590     304,741     

Utilities -                   105,851        -              105,851     

Insurance 92,070           -                  -              92,070       

Bank Charges -                   -                  66,113     66,113       

Memberships and Licenses 15,174           -                  10,162     25,336       

Office Expenses 9,010            -                  -              9,010         

Rental -                   175              -              175           

Other Operating Expenses 6,425            12,973          1,408,966 1,428,364   

$ 1,269,273      $ 6,476,122      $ 2,106,383 $ 9,851,778   

Depreciation $ 1,381,819

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 11,233,597 

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES

(Audited)

AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

TOTAL OPERATING 

EXPENSES BEFORE 

DEPRECIATION
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Revenues Final Budget Actual

Variance 

With Final 

Budget 

Favorable 

(Unfavorable)

Sewer Charges $ 10,554,000    $ 10,911,091    $ (357,091)        

Connection Charges 1,150,000     1,443,773     (293,773)        

Permits, Fees, and Inspections 260,000        443,885        (183,885)        

Total Fees and Charges $ 11,964,000 $ 12,798,749 $ (834,749)      

OPERATING EXPENSES

Collection and Treatment $ 6,440,631     $ 6,476,122     $ (35,491)          

Administration and General 1,710,380     1,269,273     441,107         

Technical Services 3,910,781     2,106,383     1,804,398       

Depreciation 1,350,600     1,381,819     (31,219)          

Total Operating Expenses $ 13,412,392 $ 11,233,597 $ 2,178,795    

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS $ (1,448,392)  $ 1,565,152   $ (3,013,544)   

Tax Revenue 700,000        790,587        (90,587)          

Interest Income 335,000        825,604        (490,604)        

Interest Expense -                  (122,564)       122,564         

Other Revenue 20,000          -                  20,000           

NET INCOME BEFORE TRANSFERS $ (393,392)     $ 3,058,779   $ (3,452,171)   

AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(Audited)
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Miscellaneous 

Second Tier 

Plan

Miscellaneous 

Plan

PEPRA 

Miscellaneous 

Plan

Proportion of the net pension liability 

(asset) 0.00004% 0.03858% 0.00000%

Proportionate share of the net pension 

liability (asset) 2,761$            2,400,776$       8$                       

Covered employee payroll 134,654$        1,418,993$       28,754$               

Proportionate share of the net pension 

liability (asset) as a percentage of its 

covered-employee payroll 2.05% 169.19% 0.03%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total pension liability 83.03% 83.03% 82.98%

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABLITY

(Audited)

JUNE 30, 2016

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 *

 

* In accordance with paragraph 81.a of GASB 68, employers will need to disclose a 10-year history of 

their proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) in their RSI. The 10-year schedule will need 

to be built prospectively. The schedule above is only for the current year.  
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Miscellaneous 

Second Tier 

Plan

Miscellaneous 

Plan

PEPRA 

Miscellaneous 

Plan

Contractually required contribution 12,569$          224,826$         5,072$                 

Contributions in relation to the 

contractually required contribution (12,569)$         (224,826)$        (5,072)$               

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                  -$                   -$                       

Covered employee payroll 134,654$        1,418,993$       28,754$               

Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll 9.33% 15.84% 17.64%

 SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABLITY

(Audited)

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS AS OF JUNE 30, 2014 *

JUNE 30, 2016

 

* Amounts presented were determined as of calendar year January 1 – December 31. Employers will be 

required to prospectively develop this table in future years to show 10 years of information. The schedule 

above is only for the current year. Prior year numbers are available from your prior year note disclosure 

information.  
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Note 1: Change in Benefit Terms 

The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes which 

occurred after June 30, 2014 as they have minimal cost impact. This applies for voluntary benefit changes 

as well as any offers of Two Year Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes). Employers that 

have done so may need to report this information as a separate liability in their financial statement as 

CalPERS considers such amounts to be separately financed employer-specific liabilities.  

Note 2: Change in Assumptions 

None 
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      1555 River Park Drive Suite 201  Sacramento, CA 95815 
 

   916.822.5128   Fax 916.218.6282  Email inquiry@stncpas.com 
 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 

STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 

South Placer Municipal Utility District 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, of South Placer 

Municipal Utility District as of June 30, 2016, for the year then ended, and have issued our report thereon 

dated October 6, 2016. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 

in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered South Placer Municipal Utility District's internal 

control. A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 

detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 

of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 

of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 

significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 

severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 

governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 

exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 

may exist that have not been identified. 

We noted the District had a lack of segregation of duties, as one person was capable of handling all 

aspects of processing transactions from beginning to end.  A lack of segregation of duties increases the 

risk of potential errors or irregularities occurring without being detected. 
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South Placer Municipal Utility District Page 2 of 2 

(continued) 

Compliance and other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the South Placer Municipal Utility District's 

financial statements are free of material misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 

direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an 

opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 

not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 

and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 

control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 

this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Stroub Thompson Noble  

Certified Public Accountants 

October 6, 2016 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 

Cc: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution #16-21 to execute a contract with Water Works 
Engineers for engineering services for the preliminary design of the Lower 
Clover Valley Trunk Sewer Replacement. 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2016 

Overview 
In April of 2015 the District completed its System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan 
(SECAP) to prepare and plan for future growth and to comply with provision D.13.viii of the 
California State Water Resources Control Board Order No. 2006-0003-DWQ, the Statewide 
General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems (SSS WDR).  The SECAP 
identified the Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer (18-inch trunk along Antelope Creek south of 
Sunset Blvd.) as needing to be upsized as a near-term improvement. 

In November of 2015 the District completed a risk assessment to identify, document, and 
prioritize high-risk facilities it owns and operates.  This effort was in line with Goal 2.1 of the 
SPMUD Strategic Plan regarding the development of a High Risk Facilities (HRF) Program. 
The risk assessment identified a number of segments of the Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer as 
high-risk assets. 

The District is looking for preliminary design and cost estimating of the potential mitigation 
measures for the Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer.  A request for proposals (RFP) for 
preliminary engineering of potential improvements to the Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer was 
distributed to seven local engineering firms on July 15, 2016.  Five proposals were received by 
the deadline of August 25, 2016.  Written proposals were reviewed by a committee made up of 
three District employees.  The top three rated firms after the review of the written proposals were 
invited to present their proposal before the committee and respond to questions.  Water Works 
Engineers was evaluated as the top proposal by all members of the evaluation committee. 
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Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

• Adopt Resolution 16-21 to authorize the General Manager to execute the contract with 
Water Works Engineers for engineering services for the preliminary design of the Lower 
Clover Valley Trunk Sewer Replacement. 

 

Strategic Plan Goal 
This action is consistent with SPMUD Strategic Plan Goals: 

Goal 1.2: Establish and meet Service Level(s) by Department. 
Goal 2.1: Document High Risk Facilities (HRF) 
Goal 3.1: Plan all projects to ensure adherence to District standards and ordinances. 
Goal 3.2: Provide Engineering and Design to optimize the Capital Improvement Program. 

 

Fiscal Impact 
The contract amount for the engineering services for this project is $69,980.  This is $8,980 more 
than the budgeted amount of $61,000 for this project.  Staff plans to address this difference with 
an adjustment during the mid-year budget review in February. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 16-21 – Resolution for the Authorization to Execute Contract for Preliminary 
Design of the Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer Replacement. 

2. Contract for Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer Replacement. 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-21 

AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH WATER WORKS ENGINEERS TO PROVIDE 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE PRELIMINARY DESIGN OF THE LOWER CLOVER VALLEY 

TRUNK SEWER REPLACEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the South Placer Municipal Utility District (District) completed its System 

Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan (SECAP) to prepare and plan for growth and comply 

with provision D.13.viii of the California State Water Resources Control Board Order No. 2006-

0003-DWQ, the Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems 

(SSS WDR); and 

WHEREAS, the SECAP identified the Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer as needing to be 

upsized as a near-term improvement, and  

WHEREAS, the District completed a risk assessment to identify, document, and prioritize 

high-risk facilities it owns and operates, and 

WHEREAS, the risk assessment identified a number of segments of the Lower Clover 

Valley Trunk Sewer as high-risk assets, and 

WHEREAS, multiple proposals for the preliminary engineering were submitted to the 

District, evaluated, and the highest rated proposal was selected, and 

WHEREAS, Resolution 15-02, the District’s Purchasing Policy, dictates that a single 

contract or commitment shall not exceed $50,000 without approval by the Board of Directors, 

and 

WHEREAS, the scope of engineering services with Water Works Engineers and fee  
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attached, marked “Exhibit A” and incorporated herein by reference, is for an amount of 

$69,980. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the South Placer 

Municipal Utility District that the General Manager is authorized to execute the contract for the 

engineering services with Water Works Engineers for the preliminary design of the Lower Clover 

Valley Trunk Sewer Replacement. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the South Placer Municipal Utility 

District Board of Directors at Rocklin, CA this 6th day of October 2016. 

 

    Signed:  _________________________________   

      Will Dickinson, President of the Board of Directors 

 

Attest:   _________________________________ 

  Joanna Belanger, Board Secretary  
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PROJECT:                                                                                                            DATE ISSUED:  10/6/2016 
 

Provide Engineering Services for the project known as: 
 

Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer Replacement – Preliminary Design 
 
FOR: South Placer Municipal Utility District, 5807 Springview Drive ~ Rocklin, CA 95677 
PROJECT MANAGER: Eric Nielsen, (916) 786-8555 Ext. 310; E-Mail enielsen@spmud.ca.gov  
 
PROPOSAL: (This section to be completed by bidder.) 
 

The undersigned agrees to complete the work specified in strict conformance with the attached Scope of Services for the 
above identified project within the time specified in calendar days after the receipt of Notice to Proceed, for the following 
amount not to exceed: $69,980. 
 
Amount in words: Sixty nine thousand, nine hundred and eighty dollars and zero cents. 
 
This includes all applicable taxes and fees.  The required insurance, as described in the (attached) Architect-Engineer/South 
Placer Municipal Utility District (SPMUD) Standard Terms and Conditions is current. 
 
Comments and Exceptions: 
 
 
 
 

Name and Address of Bidder:               Signature of Person Authorized to Sign 
 
WATERWORKS Engineers 
1322 Blue Oaks Blvd., Suite 300                                                            _______________________________________ 
Roseville, CA 95678 
 
 

Phone No.: _______________________________                                         Signer’s Name and Title (Type or Print) 
 
FAX No.:     _______________________________                                                      
                                                                                                                __________________________________________ 
E-Mail:         _______________________________                                               
 
NOTICE OF AWARD (This Section for District Use Only)                                                 DATE ISSUED:   
 

The above bid is accepted (Check One): 
 

 You are directed to proceed with the work upon receipt of this award 
 

 Notice to Proceed will be issued upon receipt of applicable bonds, insurance and other required submittals, if any 
 
By: ________________________________________                     Title: ________________________________________ 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED                                                                                      DATE ISSUED:   
 
By: ________________________________________                     Title: ________________________________________ 
 
NOTICE OF COMPLETION                                                                               DATE ISSUED:   
 
I hereby certify that the above contract has been completed and accepted by the District. 
 
By: ________________________________________                     Title: ________________________________________ 

 
 

CONTRACTING 
FORM 
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ARCHITECT–ENGINEER/SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT (SPMUD) 
Standard Terms and Conditions 

1 

 
I. SCOPE 
Architect–Engineer (AE) agrees to perform the 
services described in the scope of work attached 
hereto which incorporates these terms and 
conditions. Unless modified in writing by the 
parties hereto, the duties of AE shall not be 
construed to exceed those services specifically set 
forth in the proposal. These terms and conditions 
and the proposal, when executed by South Placer 
Municipal Utility District (SPMUD), shall 
constitute a binding agreement on both parties 
(hereinafter the “Agreement”). 
 
II. COMPENSATION 
SPMUD agrees to pay for the services in Article I 
in accordance with the compensation provisions in 
the proposal. Payment to AE will be made within 
30 days after the date of billing. Interest on the 
unpaid balance will accrue beginning on the 31st 
day at the maximum interest rate permitted by law.  
 
Time-related charges will be made in accordance 
with the billing rate referenced in the proposal or 
Agreement. Direct expenses and Subcontractor 
services shall be billed in accordance with the 
proposal or compensation exhibit attached to this 
Agreement. Otherwise, AE’s standard billing rates 
shall apply. In the event any uncontested portions 
of any invoice are not paid within 30 days of the 
date of Consultant’s invoice, Consultant shall have 
the right to suspend work per Article XIV, 
Suspension of Work. 
 
III. RESPONSIBILITY 
1.   Standard of care: AE is employed to render a 
professional service only, and any payments made 
by SPMUD are compensation solely for such 
services rendered and recommendations made in 
carrying out the Work. AE shall perform the 
services in accordance with generally accepted 
engineering practices and standards in effect when 
the services are rendered. AE does not expressly 
or impliedly warrant or guarantee its services. 
 
In performing construction management services, 
AE shall act as agent of SPMUD. AE’s review or 
supervision of work prepared or performed by 
other individuals or firms employed by SPMUD 
shall not relieve those individuals or firms of 
complete responsibility for the adequacy of their 
work. 
 
The presence of AE’s personnel at a construction 
site, whether as on-site representative, resident 
engineer or construction manager, shall be for the 
sole purpose of determining that the work is 
generally proceeding in conformance with the 
intent of the project specifications and contract 

documents and does not constitute any form of guarantee or 
assurance with respect to contractor’s performance. AE shall have 
no responsibility for the contractor’s means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, for safety precautions and programs incident to the 
contractor’s work, or for any failure of contractor to comply with 
laws and regulations applicable to performing its work. 
 
2.  Reliance upon information provided by others: If AE’s 
performance of services hereunder requires AE to rely on 
information provided by other parties (excepting AE’s 
subcontractors), AE shall not independently verify the validity, 
completeness or accuracy of such information unless otherwise 
expressly engaged to do so in writing by SPMUD. 
 
IV. PREVAILING WAGE 
To the extent that the prevailing wage, as defined by the California 
Director of Industrial Relations or any state agency with 
jurisdiction, is applicable to the scope of work to be performed 
hereunder, the AE shall pay not less than the said specified rates 
to all employees and contractors as such may be required under 
state law, and defend and indemnify SPMUD from and against 
any and all claims arising out of any failure to pay the prevailing 
wage, if such is required. 
 
V. INDEMNIFICATION 
AE agrees to indemnify and hold SPMUD harmless from and 
against any liability to the extent arising out of the negligent acts, 
errors or omissions of AE, its agents, employees, or 
representatives, in the performance of duties under the 
Agreement. Regardless of any other term of this Agreement, in no 
event shall AE be responsible or liable to SPMUD for any 
incidental, consequential, or other indirect damages. 
 
VI. INSURANCE 
AE shall maintain during the life of the Agreement the following 
minimum insurance: 
1. Commercial general liability: insurance, including personal 
injury liability, blanket contractual liability and broad form 
property damage liability. The combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage shall be not less than $1,000,000. 
2.  Automobile bodily injury and property damage liability: 
insurance covering owned, non-owned, rented, and hired cars. The 
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage shall 
not be less than $1,000,000. 
3.   Professional liability: insurance with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000. 
4. Limits of liability: The total amount of all claims SPMUD may 
have against AE under this Agreement or arising from the 
performance or non-performance of the services under any theory 
of law, including but not limited to claims for negligence, 
negligent misrepresentation and breach of contract, shall be 
strictly limited to $500,000. As SPMUD’s sole and exclusive 
remedy under this Agreement any claim, demand or suit shall be 
directed and/or asserted only against AE and not against any of 
the AE's employee’s, officers or directors. 
5.  Additional insured: SPMUD shall be named as additional 
insured on polices 1 and 2 above. Upon request, a certificate of 
insurance will be provided to SPMUD with a 30-day written 
notice in the event the above policies are cancelled. 
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Standard Terms and Conditions (cont) 

2 

 
VII.  SUBCONTRACTS 
AE shall be entitled, to the extent determined to be 
appropriate by AE to subcontract any portion of 
the Work to be performed under this Agreement. 
 
VIII. ASSIGNMENT 
If the authorized scope of work includes 
construction activities or the oversight of 
construction, AE may, at its discretion and upon 
notice to SPMUD, assign all of its contractual 
rights and obligations with respect to such 
activities or services to a qualified construction 
management firm. 
 
If the authorized scope of work requires 
professional services to be performed in a 
jurisdiction in which AE renders professional 
services solely through a locally registered 
engineering affiliate for purposes of compliance 
with professional licensing requirements in that 
jurisdiction, AE may, in its discretion, upon notice 
to SPMUD assign its contractual rights and 
obligations with respect to such services to such 
locally registered engineering affiliate.  
 
IX. INTEGRATION 
These terms and conditions and the proposal to 
which they are attached represent the entire 
understanding of SPMUD and AE as to those 
matters contained herein. No prior oral or written 
understanding shall be of any force or effect with 
respect to those matters covered herein. The 
Agreement may not be modified or altered except 
in writing signed by both parties, provided further 
that any terms and conditions in any client 
authorization or purchase order issued in 
connection or under the Agreement which are 
inconsistent with the Agreement are hereby 
superseded and shall be of no force or effect. 
 
X. SEVERABILITY 
If any part of the Agreement is found 
unenforceable under applicable laws, such part 
shall be inoperative, null and void insofar as it is 
in conflict with said laws, but the remainder of the 
Agreement shall be in full force and effect. 
 
XI. FORCE MAJEURE 
AE shall not be responsible for delays in 
performing the scope of services that may result 
from causes beyond the reasonable control or 
contemplation of AE. AE will take reasonable 
steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 
 
XII. NO BENEFIT FOR THIRD PARTIES 
The services to be performed by AE hereunder are 
intended solely for the benefit of SPMUD and no 
right nor benefit is conferred on, nor any 
contractual relationship intended or established 

with any person or entity not a party too this Agreement. No such 
person or entity shall be entitled to rely on AE’s performance of 
its services hereunder. 
 
XIII. WORK PRODUCT 
AE and SPMUD recognize that AE’s work product submitted in 
performance of this Agreement is intended only for the SPMUD 
benefit and use. Change, alteration, or reuse on another project by 
SPMUD shall be at SPMUD’s sole risk, and SPMUD shall hold 
harmless and indemnify AE against all losses, damages, costs and 
expense, including attorney’s fees, arising out of or related to any 
such unauthorized change, alteration or reuse. 
 
XIV. SUSPENSION OF WORK 
Work under this Agreement may be suspended as follows: 
1. By SPMUD: By written notice to AE, SPMUD, may suspend 
all or a portion of the Work under this Agreement if unforeseen 
circumstances beyond SPMUD’s control make normal progress of 
the Work impracticable. AE shall be compensated for its 
reasonable expenses resulting from such suspension including 
mobilization and demobilization. If suspension is greater than 30 
days, then AE shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in 
accordance with Article XV, Termination of Work. 
2.  By AE: By written notice to SPMUD, AE may suspend the 
Work if AE reasonably determines that working conditions at the 
Site (outside AE’s control) are unsafe, or in violation of applicable 
laws, or in the event SPMUD has not made timely payment in 
accordance with Article II, Compensation, or for other 
circumstances not caused by AE that are interfering with the 
normal progress of the Work. AE’s suspension of Work hereunder 
shall be without prejudice to any other remedy of AE at law or 
equity. 
 
XV. TERMINATION OF WORK 
This Agreement may be terminated as follows: 
 
1. By SPMUD: (a) for its convenience on 30 days’ notice to AE, 
or (b) for cause, if AE materially breaches this Agreement through 
no fault of SPMUD and AE neither cures such material breach nor 
makes reasonable progress toward cure within 15 days after 
SPMUD has given written notice of the alleged breach to AE. 
2.  By AE: (a) for cause, if SPMUD materially breaches this 
Agreement through no fault of AE and SPMUD neither cures such 
material breach nor makes reasonable progress toward cure within 
15 days after AE has given written notice of the alleged breach to 
SPMUD or (b) upon five days’ notice if Work under this 
Agreement has been suspended by either SPMUD or AE in the 
aggregate for more than 30 days.  
3.  Payment upon Termination. In the event of termination, AE 
shall perform such additional work as is reasonably necessary for 
the orderly closing of the Work. AE shall be compensated for all 
work performed prior to the effective date of termination of AE 
by SPMUD for cause, AE shall also receive a termination fee 
equal to 15 percent of the total compensation yet to be earned 
under existing authorizations at the time of termination. 
 
XVI. NOTICES 
All notices required under this Agreement shall be by personal 
delivery, facsimile or mail to the AE Project Manager and to the 
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person signing the proposal on behalf of the 
SPMUD and shall be effective upon delivery to the 
addressed stated in the proposal. 
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SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Water Works (ENGINEER) team shall provide the services and deliverables requested in the District’s Request for 
Proposal.  The following provides a brief task and sub task summary of our work approach.  Detailed scopes of 
work for each of our teaming partners can be provided upon request. 

Task 1: Preliminary Survey, Right of Way and Easement 
ENGINEER’s subconsultant (Andregg Geomatics) shall perform office work and fieldwork to establish topographic 
mapping suitable for preliminary design and future design level mapping activities along existing project 
alignment. Completed mapping shall be a 60 foot wide corridor with the first 275'± being 100'± wide strip and 
centered on the existing pipeline alignment and the remaining mapping existing sewer pipeline alignment shall be 
10'± East and 50'± West of the existing line and 100'± wide strip at creek crossing #2 going westerly to Hunt Club 
Drive, at a scale of 1”=40’ with 1 foot contours. 

The horizontal datum and vertical datum shall be NAD 83, California State Plane Coordinate System, Zone 2, and 
NGVD29, respectively, based on City of Rocklin Geodetic Network.  
 Conform areas such as edges of pavement and concrete, lips and gutter flowline, visible utilities, fences, 

culverts and drainage features, at creek crossing include top & toe of channel and centerline, survey 
large trees 24" dbh and larger and large rock outcrops that may impact design, and other large features 
that may impact civil design improvements; 

 Where needed to assess validity of parallel alignment, include top of easterly edge of creek 
embankment and if distance is greater than 150'±, estimate distance to top embankment; 

 Rim and invert elevations of 14 existing Sewer Manholes along the existing line; 
 Rim and invert elevations of 10 feeder Sewer Manholes as delineated on Exhibit A of RFP. 

Andregg Geomatics will locate property corners and boundary evidence sufficient to delineate record parcel lines 
and rights of way within and adjacent to the mapping limits. It will locate easement lines as shown on Record 
Maps.  
 Locate easement lines as shown on Record Maps; 
 Record LandNet with found boundary/property corners. 

Task 1 Deliverables  

• Topographic Survey files (AutoCAD and PDF format to District PM) 

Task 2: Preliminary Environmental Constraints Assessment 
ENGINEER’s subconsultant (North State Resources) NSR will coordinate with the ENGINEER on the preliminary 
project design and obtain initial details on the alignments being considered and extent of construction activities, 
including staging, access, and disturbance footprint, to establish a study area for the environmental constraints 
assessment.  NSR biologists will conduct research on known special-status species occurrences, wetlands and 
other water features, tree protection ordinance requirements, and sensitive habitats. NSR archaeologists will 
obtain information on previously recorded cultural resource sites in the vicinity of the study area, conduct 
research at historic venues and other locations, and conduct a field visit to determine the sensitivity of the study 
area from a cultural resource perspective.  

The archaeologists will contact representatives of the United Auburn Indian Community to invite them to 
participate in the survey and discuss their knowledge of tribal resources in or near the study area. NSR analysts 
will conduct research on other resource topics typically considered in CEQA documents, such as land use, traffic, 
air quality, water quality, soils, and hazardous materials, to assess potential concerns with these topics.  
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 Review documentation and maps of the study area, such as the City of Rocklin; aerial photographs; 
topographic maps; and previous CEQA documentation; 

 Conduct a field visit to identify biological, archaeological, and/or other identifiable constraints;  
 Map depicting the locations of potential constraints will be prepared; 
 Contact representatives of the United Auburn Indian Community to invite them participating in the 

survey and discuss their knowledge of tribal resources in and near study area; 
 Research on other resource topics typically considered in CEQA documents; 
 Compile a Technical Memorandum summarizing all possible environmental constraints for the project. 

Task 2 Deliverables  

• Environmental Constraints Technical Memorandum (PDF format to District PM) 

Task 3: Geotechnical Desktop Study 
ENGINEER’s subconsultant (Vertical Sciences, Inc.) VSI will provide geotechnical engineering services for the 
preliminary design of the project. complete a Geotechnical Desktop Study.  

 Compile regional and local geological maps showing the distribution of geologic materials and soils; 
 Obtain geoenvironmental data (contamination, hazardous materials, etc.) for the project area through a 

search of Environmental Data Resources database; 
 Indicate where hazardous material and containment constraints may be encountered in soil and/or 

groundwater along the alignments; 
 Conduct a field visit to identify the geologic units through the project area. 

Above collected data will be reviewed and analyzed to evaluate the feasibility of the preliminary design of various 
alignments for the project. The following are the geological constraints will be evaluated: 

 Presence of geologic hazards such as liquefaction, lateral spreading, faulting, and regional subsidence; 
 Depth to groundwater; 
 Depth and thicknesses of the compressible soils; 
 Consistency and thicknesses of artificial fill; 
 General variations in consistency of soils along pipeline alignment alternatives; 
 Concentrations and sizes of oversize clasts such as cobbles and boulders; 
 Estimated depths to underlying bedrock; 
 Preliminary geotechnical design recommendations for the proposed pipeline alignments and any 

identified potential realignments; 
 Geotechnical constructability issues; and 
 Potential geoenvironmental (hazardous materials and contaminants) issues that could be encountered. 

Task 3 Deliverables  

• Geotechnical Desktop Study (PDF format to District PM) 

Task 4: Utility Coordination “A” Letters 
Water Works will follow the ABC Process as agreed upon by the APWA Joint Utilities Coordination Committee to 
collect Quality Level C information as defined by ASCE Standard 38-02 for the Collection and Depiction of Existing 
Subsurface Utility Data. This initial task will include sending “A” Letters to all utility providers that may be present 
in the project corridor. Water Works is aware that the District also conducts utility coordination through a local 
Agency cooperative program. ENGINEER will work with the District to provide information needed to assist with 
that process and ensure duplicate work is not conducted and procedures used by the District as part of that 
program are met.  
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 Coordinate with utility provides on existing conditions and future master plan build out facilities; 
 Send “A” Letters to all utility providers that may be present in the project corridor; and 
 Maintain a Utility Contact Log spreadsheet with listing path of communication. 

Task 4 Deliverables  

• None (Incorporate in the Preliminary Design Report) 

Task 5: Preliminary Design Report 
Water Works team will collect and review results of preliminary LandNet; Survey; Right-or-Way; Environmental; 
Geotechnical; and Utility Coordination combined that with previous study data to analyze the feasibility of the 
project, with particular emphasis on identifying “fatal flaws” in the proposed alternatives. ENGINEER will conduct 
site reconnaissance to review potential conflicts with proposed improvements and potential preferred route. 
ENGINEER anticipates SPMUD staff being present during the site reconnaissance to identify the key features and 
discuss key areas of concern; possible constraints; and likely construction techniques (traditional and trenchless).  
 
 Conduct a site reconnaissance with District Staff, Water Works team and its sub-consultants; 

 Observe key locations within the project boundary and routes; including: lids, inverts and water depth of 
pertinent manholes and drainage structures; street surface condition, curbs and sidewalks; pipeline 
alignment centerlines (existing and proposed); readily identifiable utilities and service connections; 

 Facilitate a Preliminary Design/Basis of Design Workshop discussion involving District staff to review the 
preliminary design criteria and confirm accuracy.  This workshop will contain the following: 

• Project Location (Map of project location and key areas of concern); 

• Construction Constraints (geotechnical, environmental, existing utilities, right-of-way, easement, 
encroachment, confirmation of key stakeholders); 

• Project Hydraulics (System design flows, peaking factors, dry weather versus wet weather, cleaning 
velocities, hydraulic profile, maximizing capacity versus minimizing depth, etc.);  

• Pipeline Planning (Connections/transition between existing and new pipe segments, alignment, pipe 
materials, trenchless versus traditional construction for deep segment); 

• Construction standards and project delivery (review District standards and possible modifications 
required, etc.); 

• Schedule confirmation (confirm critical path items, Environmental processing, encroachment permit 
processing, Right-of-Way procurement, etc.); 

• Confirm the intent of Stakeholders (City of Rocklin) design requirements, discuss key areas of 
concerns, and requirements of walkway along the creek; 

• Set a define direction for preparing a Draft Preliminary Design Report. 
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Engineer will review and compile results of Preliminary Design/Basis of Design Workshop and complete 
necessary additional engineering office analysis to produce Preliminary Design Report; 

 Prepare a Preliminary Design Report summarizing the research, analysis and preferred alignment and 
construction methodology for the trunk sewer. The Report will serve as the basis for final design 
direction. The Report will include the following key functions: 

• Identify engineering issues and constraints and recommended resolutions; 

• Describe in depth all Project Constraints (environment, geotechnical, existing utilities, right-of-way, 
easement, encroachment, concerns of key stakeholders); 

• Analyze Pipe Hydraulics, Pipe Materials, Method of Construction for all alignments; 

• Preliminary Plan view of all alignments and & Profile of preferred pipeline alignment(s) using survey 
data; 

• Provide construction costs and constraint costs for each alignment;  

• Recommend preferred alternative and provide guidance for effective and efficient execution of final 
design; 

• Provide a detailed project description for use with permit application and CEQA process; 

• Recommended additional services (Geotechnical, Survey, Pot-Holing, Right-of-Way/Encroachment, 
easement procurement, etc.); 

• Schedule confirmation (confirm critical path items, construction budget, Environmental processing, 
encroachment permit processing, Right-of-Way procurement);  

• Preliminary Cost Estimate (30% contingency level). 

Task 5 Deliverables  

• Preliminary Design/Basis of Design Workshop (PowerPoint & Meeting Notes) 
• Draft Preliminary Design Report (PDF format to District PM) 
• Final Preliminary Design Report (Five hardcopies and PDF format to District PM) 

 

Project Management 
Under each task and subtask, Water Works will monitor and track the project budget and schedule to ensure that 
all deadlines are met and that the project budget is not exceeded. Water Works will coordinate with the project 
team to address items such as project schedule, project budget, and current issues of concern. Water Works will 
also monitor progress and coordinate the activities being performed by all sub-consultants associated with the 
project, and submit monthly progress reports to the City. The following will be performed under this subtask: 

1) Project Communication and Control 

2) Technical Review and Quality Assurance/Quality Control 
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PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Based on this Scope of Services, Water Works Engineers estimates a Preliminary Design, Final Design and 
Construction Schedule as depicted below.  Schedule can and will be updated as needed to meet District requested 
project implementation and execution schedule. 

Estimated Preliminary Design, Final Design, Permitting and Construction Schedule 

Description Estimated Time / Date 

Preliminary Design Schedule: 

Notice to Proceed (signed Amendment) October 6th, 2016 

Utility “A” Letters October 10th, 2016 

Survey & Geotechnical Studies November 30th, 2016 

Environmental Studies November 30th, 2016 

Preliminary Design/Basis of Design Workshop January 10th, 2017 

Draft Preliminary Design Report January 31st, 2017 

District Review Period February 10th, 2017 

Final Preliminary Design Report February 24th, 2017 

Final Design Schedule (Not included in project but provided as reference for District planning) 

Commence Final Design April 2017 

Surveying May 2017  

Property Procurement Services (as needed) May 2017 until February 2018 

Geotechnical Services July 2017 

60% PSE September 2017 

Environmental / Encroachment Permitting (as needed) June 2017 until February 2018 

90% PSE November 2017 

Final PSE End of February 2018 

Signed Easements & Approved Permits  March 2018 

Construction Schedule (Not included in project but provided as reference for District planning) 

Bid Advertise Period March 2018 

Contract Approval, Award, Contracting, NTP April 2018 

Submittal Review Period May 2018 

Construction Period June to November 2018 
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FEE PROPOSAL 
Water Works Engineers proposes to complete the services described herein on a Time and Expense basis not to 
exceed $69,980 without written consent from CLIENT and invoiced in accordance with the Hourly Billing Rates 
table below.  

The total budget for each task will be as follows: 

Subtask Title Budget* 
1 Preliminary Survey, Right of Way and Easement $15,070 
2 Preliminary Environmental Constraints Assessment $10,450 
3 Geotechnical Desktop Study $6,160 
4 Utility Coordination “A” Letters $2,646 
5 Preliminary Design Report $35,654 
 Total Phase I $69,980 

*A detailed fee basis work plan is provided on the following page for reference. 
 

Classification Title Hourly Rate 

AA Administrative $93 

E1 Staff Engineer $116 

E2 Associate Engineer  $142 

E3 Project / Structural Engineer $160 

E4 Senior Project Engineer / Manager  $185 

E5 Principal Engineer $215 

I1 Field Inspector  $125 

I2 Senior Inspector $140 

I3 Supervising Inspector $155 

T1 CADD Tech 1 $79 

T2 CADD Tech 2 $106 

T3 CADD Tech 3 $129 
Notes: 
1. A markup of 10% will be applied to all project related Direct Costs and Expenses. 
2. An additional premium of 25% will be added to the above rates for Expert Witness and Testimony Services. 
3. Rate effective through December 31, 2016. A 3% increase will be added for any services performed in each year thereafter. 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Cc: Joanna Belanger, Administrative Services Manager 
Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 
Sam Rose, Superintendent 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution 16-22 adopting Policies 3160 – Utility Billing 
Reconciliation and Payment and 3165 – Delinquent (Past Due) Bills  

Meeting Date: October 6, 2016 

Overview 
On February 5, 2015, the Board adopted Resolution 15-03 adopting a Utility Billing Reconciliation 
and Payment Policy. This policy relied upon state statute of limitations related to the treatment, and 
pursuit of utility billing errors, reconciliations and payments made to the District.  On September 3, 
2015, the Board adopted Resolution 15-23, creating a Policy Handbook that contained approximately 
50 policies to govern District activities. Unfortunately, the previously adopted Utility Billing 
Reconciliation and Payment Policy was inadvertently left out off of the Policy Handbook. Adoption 
of Policy 3160 will correct that oversight.  

During the Board Meeting on June 2, 2016, in the course of the Board deliberation of Resolution 
16-12, requesting that Placer County collect delinquent services charges on the tax rolls, the Board 
directed staff to work with the Policy and Ordinance Advisory Committee to return to the Board with 
a Delinquent (Past Due) Bill Policy. Staff met with the Policy and Ordinance Advisory Committee 
on September 7, 2016 to discuss the pending policy. Originally staff had proposed a late fee of 10-
18% APR per month if a bill was delinquent. The Advisory Committee directed staff to bring before 
the Board for adoption a Delinquent (Past Due) Bill policy based upon a late fee of 
$2.50/EDU/month. This proposal is included in Policy 3165. 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt the Resolution 16-22 adopting Policies 3160 – 
Utility Billing Reconciliation and Payment and 3165 – Delinquent (Past Due) Bills. 

Strategic Plan Goals 
This action is consistent with SPMUD Strategic Plan Goals: 

Goal 1.2: Establish and meet service level(s) by Department. 
Goal 1.3 Build Business Efficiencies 
Goal 2.4: Maintain transparency with all District activities. 
Goal 5.2: Explore and evaluate investment and business practice alternatives. 
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Fiscal Impact 
Staff estimates that the bills for approximately 800 EDU went to Placer County for collections in 
June, 2016. A $2.50/EDU/month late payment fee assessed for those accounts would have generated 
approximately $24,000 in revenue. Staff expects that after adoption and public outreach of the fee, 
that late payment charges would result in less additional revenue. 

Attachments: 
• Resolution 16-21 adopting Policies 3160 – Utility Billing Reconciliation and Payment and

3165 – Delinquent (Past Due) Bills
• Policy 3160 – Utility Billing Reconciliation and Payment
• Policy 3165 – Delinquent (Past Due) Bills
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-22 

ADOPTING POLICIES 3160 – UTILITY BILLING RECONCILIATION AND PAYMENT 

AND 

3165 – DELINQUENT (PAST DUE) BILLS 

WHEREAS, The South Placer Municipal Utility District (District) Sewer Use Ordinance 09-

02, mandates the payment of an initial participation charge for the privilege of connecting to 

the District’s wastewater system and a monthly service charge for wastewater service; and 

WHEREAS, either inadvertently or intentionally, some customers fail to pay these 

charges; and 

WHEREAS, The Board did adopt a Billing Reconciliation & Payment policy to correct 

billing errors if not more than three years has elapsed when it passed Resolution 15-03 on 

February 5, 2015, but failed to include said policy in the District Policy Handbook adopted by 

Resolution 15-23 on September 3, 2015,; and  

WHEREAS, Each year the delinquent service charges that remain outstanding for the 

previous calendar year are included on the County of Placer Tax rolls for collection; and 

WHEREAS, The District desires the reduction of the number of accounts sent to the 

County of Placer Tax rolls for collection as well as provide an incentive for customers to pay the 

District in a timely manner; and  

WHEREAS, Policy 3160 – Billing Reconciliation & Payment, establishes the protocol to 

correct billing errors if not more than three years has elapsed, and 3165 – Delinquent (Past Due) 

Bills, establishes a procedure to assess late fees on past due bills. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the South Placer 

Municipal Utility District that the attached Policies, 3160 – Billing Reconciliation & Payment, and 

3165 – Delinquent (Past Due) Bills, are adopted in their entirety and to be included in the 
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aforementioned District Policy Handbook. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the South Placer Municipal Utility 

District Board of Directors at Rocklin, CA this 6th day of October 2016. 

Signed: _________________________________  

Will Dickinson, President of the Board of Directors 

Attest:  _________________________________ 

Joanna Belanger, Board Secretary  
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SOUTH PLACER UTILITY DISTRICT POLICIES 

Policy Name: 3160 - UTILITY BILLING RECONCILIATION & PAYMENT POLICY 

Approval 
Authority: SPMUD BOARD OF DIRECTORS Adopted: 09/28/16 

Resolution 
No: 15-03, 16-22 Revised: 

PURPOSE 

This policy establishes a uniform procedure for the treatment of Utility billing errors, 
reconciliations and payments made to the District. 

POLICY STATEMENT 

The District may correct billing errors if not more than three years has elapsed from the bill due 
date to the date of discovery of the error.  If the District has over billed a customer, the District 
may grant the customer either a refund or a credit to the customer’s account for not more than 
three years of over billed amounts. 

If the District has under-billed a customer, the District may back-bill the customer for not more 
than three years of under billed amounts.  In most situations the District will bill for only one 
year of billed amounts. The General Manager will determine each instance individually. 

If the District has not charged a customer for Participation fees due at the time of connection to 
the District’s sewer facilities, the District will back-bill the customer for the participation fees, 
the determination of the fee rate will be made at the discretion of the General Manager.   The 
District reserves the right to offer both residential and commercial customers for whom a 
participation payment has not been made, a deferred payment plan in accordance with Policy 
No. 3350 – Deferred Participation Charges.  

In instances when a payment is made to the District and the payment method (checks, 
electronic payments, automated fund transfers and other similar payment transactions) is 
returned unpaid or non-sufficient funds, the District may impose a service charge, equivalent to 
the amount of bank charges incurred upon the District. 
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SOUTH PLACER MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT POLICIES 

Policy Name: 3165 – DELINQUENT (PAST DUE) BILLS 

Approval 
Authority: SPMUD BOARD OF DIRECTORS Adopted:  09/28/16 

Resolution 
No. 16-22 Revised: 

PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to establish criteria to assess late fees to delinquent accounts and 
ensure payment of these past due bills for a monthly service. 

POLICY STATEMENT 

Section 1: General 

The District requires the payment of a monthly service charge for each equivalent dwelling unit 
by ordinance, and changed from time to time by the Board of Directors in accordance with 
provisions of Sections 12809 and 14401 of the Public Utilities Code.  

Section 2: Policy Statement 

Sewer service is considered "ready to use" and will continue to be billed monthly as long as the 
service is connected to the premises. Only sewer connections that have been physically 
disconnected to the satisfaction of the District will be considered “disconnected” and not 
subject to monthly billing.  

Bills will be accumulated and sent to customers quarterly (every 3 months) in accordance with 
District Billing practices.  Any balance not paid in full by the due date is considered past due 
(delinquent).  A late fee of $2.50 will be assessed for each EDU, and will be charged monthly to 
each past due account. The late fees will appear on the customer's next bill following the late 
occurrence. 

Twice annually, the District will request that the County of Placer collect on the County tax rolls 
all outstanding delinquent charges (and late fees) due on properties which have been imposed 
pursuant to the Public Utilities Code, the Health and Safety Code and any applicable District 
Codes and Ordinances. 
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ITEM VII.2 GENERAL MANAGER REPORT  

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Herb Niederberger, GM 

Date:  October 6, 2016 

Subject:  General Manager Monthly Staff Report – September 2016 

1) DEPARTMENT REPORTS
Attached are the monthly status reports for the Boards information: 

A. Facility Services Department
B. Administrative Service Department, and
C. Technical Services Department

The Department Managers are prepared to answer any questions from the Board. 

2) INFORMATION ITEMS
A. On September 6, 2016, the General Manager met with Joan Phillipe, Interim Town

Manager with the Town of Loomis to provide a briefing on potential development within 
the Town of Loomis, the Districts Fog Ordinance and short-range District projects that 
may affect development potential within Loomis. 

B. On September 7, 2016 the General Manager and Director Mitchell attended the Rocklin 
Chamber of commerce Government Relations Committee to hear a presentation from Dr. 
John Jackson, President of William Jessup University to hear an update on the WJU 
activities. 

C. On September 14, 2016, the General Manager and the Engineering Manager Eric Nielsen 
along with District Legal Counsel met with all parties associated with the Godfrey 
litigation as part of the ongoing mediation. 

D. On September 22, 2016, the General Manager met with the District Legal Counsel to 
discuss District legal needs. Among some of the items that were discussed: 

a. Godfrey litigation update, pending mediation and closed session
b. Pending Policy and Ordinance Advisory Committee items

i. Joint Use of Easements
ii. Additional billing policies

iii. Codification of existing District Ordinances into a District Sewer Code
iv. Lower Lateral Policy

c. Employee Manual Update

E. On September 26, 2016, the General Manager met with City of Rocklin Economic and 
Community Development Director, Marc Mondell to discuss items of mutual interest to 
both the District and the City, including the City’s Parkway and Trails Plan, Joint Use of 
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District Easements, the Lower Clover Valley Trunk design and . Codification of existing 
District Ordinances into a District Sewer Code. 

F. On September 29, 2016, the General Manager and the Engineering Manager Eric Nielsen 
along with District Legal Counsel met with all parties associated with the Godfrey 
litigation as part of the ongoing mediation. 

G. Advisory Committee Meetings: 
a. The Policy and Ordinance Advisory Committee met on September 7, 2016 to

discuss pending Policies 3160 – Billing Reconciliation & Payment,  and 3165 – 
Delinquent (Past Due) Bills, as well as the pending SPMUD Sewer Code.  

3) LONG RANGE AGENDA

November 2016
Lower lateral Policy 
HRF Preliminary Design Contract – Creek Crossings 

December 2016 
Caltrans Utility Agreement 

January 2016 
Oath of Office, Wards 1, 4 & 5 
Seating of Board President, Vice President and Appointments of Temporary Advisory 
Committees 
Strategic Plan Workshop #1 
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ITEM VII. FSD REPORT 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Sam Rose, Superintendent 

Cc:  Herb Niederberger, General Manager 

Subject: Field Services Department Monthly Report 

Meeting Date: October 6, 2016 

Overview 
This report provides the Board with an overview of Field Services operations from 08/24/2016 
through 09/28/2016.  The work listed is not all inclusive.  

1. Recordable Accidents/Injuries (OSHA 300)

a. One (1)
i. Back Strain/muscle spasms

ii. 29 days without a Recordable Injury

2. Service Calls / Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs)

a. Service Calls
i. Twenty Seven (27)

A. 20 - Customer’s Responsibility 
B. 0 - SPMUD Responsibility  
C. 7 – General Services 

b. Lift Station Calls
i. Three (3)

c. Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs)
i. Zero (0) 192 Days since last SSO

3. Safety/Training/Professional Development

a. All Field employees participated in:
i. Hand Tool Safety

ii. HazMat Storage & Spill Response Training
iii. Overflow Emergency Response Training

A. SSO Response 
B. SSO Documentation 
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Page 2 of 2 
 

C. Spill Volume Determination 
iv. Four (4) “Tailgate” safety sessions were held. 

 
 
 

4. Maintenance           Feet 
 

a. CCTV Mainline Segments    70 Segments  17,500’ 
b. CCTV Service Laterals    64  Laterals               14,760’ 
c. Hydro-Clean Mainline Segments   56  Segments  15,245’  
d. Manhole Inspections     73 Manholes 
e. Rodded/Cleaned Service Laterals   17 Laterals 
f. High Frequency Rodding            27 Mainlines  
g. Creek-Crossing Inspections    00 Crossings  
h. Chemical Root Treatment    14 Segments   
i. Easement Maintenance    00 L.F.     

 
5. Construction  

a. Service Taps    0 Taps 
b. Lateral Installs    0 Laterals 
c. Property Line Cleanout Work 

i. Repaired   06  Cleanouts 
ii. Installed   01  Cleanout 

d. Mainline Repair   02  Mainline point repair 
e. Service Lateral Repair  00  Lateral point repair 
f. Service Cap-Off   00  Services 
g. Manhole Rehabilitation  05  Manholes  
h. Manhole Install   01  Manhole 
i. Easement Reconstruction   00  L.F. 
j. Vector Control (Cockroaches) 00  Manholes 

 
6. Facilities   

a. Lift Station Operations Checks 60 Operation Checks 
b. Lift Station Repair   03 Repairs Performed 
c. Lift Station Wet Well Cleaning 13 Wet Wells 
d. Lift Station Site Maintenance  02 Sites 
e. Flow Recorder Inspection  10 Sites 
f. Corp Yard Water Treatment Facility  05 Operational Checks 
g. Vehicle/Equip Maintenance  07 Work Orders 

 
7. Miscellaneous 

 
a. Collected and hauled away scrap metal and concrete/asphalt spoils from corp 

yard. 
b. Intruder Activity: (9/26/16, 9/27/16). It appeared the same person was using the 

corp. yard as a shortcut.  Police responded.  No damage or stolen property.  
c. Trimmed tree branches, repaired fences, and relocated stock as a means to 

enhance security measures at corp yard. 
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ITEM VII.   ASD REPORT 

 
To:   Board of Directors 
 
From:   Joanna Belanger, Administrative Services Manager 
 
CC:   Herb Niederberger, General Manager 
 
Subject:  Administrative Services Department Monthly Report 
 
Board Mtg. Date: October 6, 2016 
 

 
FY 15-16 Audit   
The Districts Auditor has completed their work for the FY 15-16 Audit.  The report is provided 
for the Boards acceptance this evening.   
 
Outreach Event – Hot Chili Cool Cars 
District staff provided outreach materials to attendees at the Hot Chili Cool Cars event on 
September 17th.  The event was well attended, and the Fats, Oil, Grease and Rags information 
was well received.  The next outreach event is the “Day before Thanksgiving Parade” in Loomis 
on November 23rd, three large pieces of equipment will drive the parade route, and staff walking 
alongside the vehicles will distribute outreach materials and information to attendees. 
 
Archiving Project 
Administrative Services employees are now awaiting the last quotation to determine which 
company will be selected to scan District documents for the Archiving/Records Management 
project. Once the files are scanned the next step will be selection of a Records Management 
program. 
 
Personnel 
Open Enrollment for employee health insurance is open through October 7, 2016.  Rates have 
experienced an average increase of 3.24 percent for active and retired employees.  Rates for 
retirees in Medicare supplemental plans have decreased slightly, by an average of 1.63 percent. 
These increases were anticipated with the FY16/17 Budget.   
 
Intranet  
The Intranet project (District network accessible only by staff with access to a wide range of 
information and services internally) is in its final stages.  The Districts IT consultant continues to 
work with Designwerks staff to load the program and set up the components in preparation to go 
live later this year.  
 
Rocklin Chamber Display  
The SPMUD display advertisement will be placed in the Rocklin Chamber of Commerce offices 
within the next couple of weeks.  The sign provides District Engineering contacts and outreach 
information for current businesses and potential businesses coming to the area. 
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ITEM VII.   TSD REPORT 

 

To:   Board of Directors 
 
From:   Eric Nielsen, District Engineer 
 
Cc:   Herb Niederberger, General Manager 
 
Subject:  Technical Services Department Monthly Report  
 
Board Date:  October 6, 2016 
 
 
IT Master Plan 
Staff continues to work towards implementation of Lucity. Lucity is currently in the process of 
migrating the legacy data from WWMS into the Lucity database. After review of the data by 
staff, Lucity will conduct the final push of legacy data and staff will begin use of Lucity.   
 

The department evaluated and has implemented a web tool available from USA North, which 
allows for paperless management of the process to respond to requests for marking underground 
SPMUD facilities.  USA North provides this tool at no cost to its members.  Use of the web tool 
has streamlined the process of positively responding to requests, stores requests and associated 
responses, and provides reporting capabilities. 
 

Foothill Trunk Sewer Replacement Project 
The project is now in the final design, permitting, and right-of-way acquisition phase. Members 
of the project team are meeting with residents along the alignment to obtain easements and gain 
right of entry during construction. Construction of this project is planned for the spring of 2017. 
 

Loomis Diversion Trunkline Project 
The project is now in the final design, permitting, and right-of-way acquisition phase. Members 
of the project team are meeting with owners along the property to inform them about the project 
and obtain signed right of entry letters and easements. Exploratory drilling for geotechnical 
analysis to support the pipeline design is scheduled for early October. Construction of this 
project is anticipated to start in the spring of 2017. 
 

High Risk Facilities (HRF) Program 
The evaluation of the Lower Clover Valley Trunk Sewer Replacement proposals concluded.  A 
staff report is being presented to the Board at this meeting to consider awarding the contract to 
the recommended consultant, Water Works Engineers. 
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Relocation of 42-inch Trunk Sewer for Caltrans I80/SR65 Interchange Improvements 
A workshop was held with the design team internally to review the 50% plans submittal on 
September 6th.  The Relocation Plan is scheduled to be submitted to Caltrans for their review in 
the middle of October.  The Utility Agreement between Caltrans and SPMUD is anticipated to be 
brought to the Board in December or January. 
 

District Easements 
Staff developed a standard operating procedure for investigating potential easement 
encroachments.   Staff has started reaching out and coordinating with owners to schedule times 
to access easements and survey potential encroachments. 
 

FOG Program 
Staff continue meeting with food service establishments to inform them of the District’s FOG 
program and permit the establishments according to Ordinance 09-01.  The number of FOG 
Permits collected to date compared to the goal is shown in the performance indicators below. 
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